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PART I
Forward-Looking Statements
The Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) encourages companies to disclose forward-looking information so that investors can
better understand a company’s future prospects and make informed investment decisions. This report contains such “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
Words such as “may,” “potential,” “anticipate,” “could,” “estimate,” “expects,” “projects,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes” and words and
terms of similar substance used in connection with any discussion of future operating or financial performance identify forward-looking
statements. All forward-looking statements are management’s present expectations of future events and are subject to a number of risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements.
Please also see the discussion of risks and uncertainties under the heading “Risk Factors.”
In light of these assumptions, risks and uncertainties, the results and events discussed in the forward-looking statements contained in this
report might not occur. Investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date
of this report. We are not under any obligation, and we expressly disclaim any obligation, to update or alter any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
ITEM 1.

BUSINESS

General
Converted Organics Inc. (“Converted Organics”, “we”, “us”, “our”, or the “Company”) had acquired innovative clean technologies to
establish and operate environmentally friendly businesses. As of the filing date of this report, due to severe cash constraints, we have sold two
of those technologies (Industrial Wastewater Treatment and Vertical Farming) and continue to operate one segment (Organic Fertilizer).
As of the filing date of this report, we have entered into a financing agreement at the corporate level, which will allow us to operate until
March 31, 2013. Presently, we have no commitments for further funds to operate past that date and, as discussed below, we continue to actively
seek a merger partner for our business.
Throughout 2012, our plan has been and continues to be to work with our creditors to pay off our debt, continue to operate our Organic
Fertilizer segment, find investors, or a buyer for the Industrial Wastewater Treatment segment and the Vertical Farming segment of our business
and seek a merger partner that can benefit from our status as a public company. We believe that this plan offers an opportunity to provide value
to our shareholders. During the last four months of 2012 we completed part of this plan through the sale of both our Industrial Wastewater
Treatment and Vertical Farming segments.
In September 2012, we settled a dispute with the licensor of the industrial wastewater technology which resulted in the termination of
our Industrial Wastewater Supply and License Agreement and the payment to the Company of $650,000. These funds were used to allow us to
operate through January 31, 2013. In light of the termination of the Industrial Wastewater Supply and License Agreement we will not generate
future revenue or own any assets in that segment of our business.
In December 2012, we entered into a Purchase and Sale of Business Agreement (the "Agreement") with an Investor, whereby the
Company transferred its entire ownership of TerraSphere Inc. (100% owned by the Company) and the subsidiaries of TerraSphere Inc. to the
Investor for consideration of $5.00. Under the Agreement, the Investor received all of the assets of TerraSphere Inc. and its subsidiaries and
assumed all of the liabilities of TerraSphere Inc. and its subsidiaries. The assets of TerraSphere at the date of sale were approximately
$1,017,000 and the liabilities were approximately $1,045,000 not including a pending lawsuit. As a result of the termination of our Industrial
Wastewater Treatment segment and the sale of our Vertical Farming segment, the 2012 and 2011 operating activity from those segments have
been classified as discontinued operations.
Presently, within our Organic Fertilizer segment, our facility in Gonzales, CA is operational and although it was cash flow positive in the
first six months of 2012 (assuming no corporate overhead), it had negative cash flow of $162,000 in the last six months of 2012. We therefore
do not expect that it will provide any cash flow to either fund corporate operating needs or expand that business segment in the immediate
future. We also do not expect positive cash flow in the first quarter of 2013 as that is a typically slow selling period for the Organic Fertilizer
market.
In January 2012, we entered into a limited financing agreement that provided for monthly working capital needs at the corporate level
through the issuance of secured convertible notes. As we received funds in connection with the settlement of our Industrial Wastewater Supply
and License Agreement in September of 2012, we had cash that allowed us to operate through January 31, 2013, without taking
additional advances under the limited financing agreement. The last advance we received under that agreement was in August 2012. There are
no further advances available to us under this agreement.
Based on our historically low stock price, the conversion of the convertible notes issued under the limited financing agreement has
resulted in massive issuances of our common stock. In addition, with the price of our common stock at current levels, we do not have sufficient
shares to permit the full conversion of the convertible notes issued under the limited financing agreement and the January 13, 2013 notes which
means we would be required to either repay the note in cash, which we do not have, or implement an additional reverse stock split. In June
2012, both the authority to have another reverse split in any ratio of 1:100; 1:200; 1:300; 1:400; or 1:500, and an increase of our authorized
shares of common stock from 500 million to one billion, were approved by our shareholders. The increase of our shares of common stock

shares of common stock from 500 million to one billion, were approved by our shareholders. The increase of our shares of common stock
authorized to one billion shares was effective in June 2012. At the time of filing this report we expect to effect the reverse stock split prior to the
end of the first quarter of 2013, subject to various contingencies, which would be required in order to permit the full conversion of outstanding
convertible notes.
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Our principal executive office is located at 7A Commercial Wharf West, Boston, MA 02110, and our phone number is (617) 624-0111.
The Development of Our Company
Converted Organics Inc. was incorporated in Delaware in January of 2006 for the purpose of establishing a waste-to-fertilizer business.
In February 2007, we successfully completed both a $9.9 million initial public offering of stock and a $17.5 million bond offering with the New
Jersey Economic Development Authority. The net proceeds of these offerings were used to develop and construct a fertilizer manufacturing
facility in Woodbridge, NJ. In January of 2008, we acquired the assets of Waste Recovery Industries, LLC (WRI) and United Organic
Products, LLC (UOP), making us the exclusive owner of the High Temperature Liquid Composting (HTLC®) process, as well as a leading
liquid fertilizer line and a processing facility in Gonzales, CA. Also in 2008, operations commenced at the Woodbridge, NJ plant, with the
production of dry fertilizer product beginning in 2009. We subsequently began distribution of the dry product in the professional turf and retail
markets through professional landscaping companies and well known retailers like Home Depot and Whole Foods. In 2009, we also raised
$27 million of additional capital and the Gonzales, CA facility became cash flow positive. In 2010, we closed the Woodbridge, NJ plant,
making the Gonzales, CA plant our sole fertilizer manufacturing facility (see Item 7 — “Results of Discontinued Operations” for more
information). We continue to operate the Gonzales, CA facility; however, in the last six months of 2012 it was not cash flow positive.
In March 2010, we began to operate an Industrial Wastewater Resources division of the Company (“IWR”) to leverage our exclusive
license of the LM-HT® Concentrator technology for the treatment of industrial wastewater. On March 23, 2010, we entered into a loan and
license agreement with Heartland Technology Partners, LLC (“HTP”). The non-interest bearing loan agreement required us to advance
$500,000 to HTP in three monthly installments that commenced upon signing of the loan. The outstanding principal balance of the loan was due
only if either a change of control of HTP or the completion by HTP of a financing in excess of $10 million occurred on or before June 30,
2012. In consideration for entering into the loan agreement, we were granted an exclusive, irrevocable license to utilize HTP’s patented LMHT® Concentrator technology in the U.S. industrial wastewater market. On June 30, 2012, these two items had not occurred and therefore we
did not receive the $500,000 repayment from HTP, however, we valued the license at $500,000. On September 17, 2012, we completed a
transaction with HTP whereby we terminated all rights under the license agreement in exchange for $650,000 and we no longer have any rights
under that agreement. For the year ended December 31, 2012 we recognized a $150,000 gain on the termination of the License Agreement.
These funds were used to allow us to operate through January 31, 2013. In light of the termination of the Industrial Wastewater Supply and
License Agreement we will not generate future revenue or own any assets in that segment of our business and as such the results of operations
for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are classified as discontinued operations.
On May 20, 2010, we formed TerraSphere Inc., a Delaware C corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, for the
purpose of acquiring the membership interests of TerraSphere Systems, LLC (“TerraSphere Systems”). On July 6, 2010, a membership interest
purchase agreement was entered into by the Company, TerraSphere Inc., TerraSphere Systems, and the members of TerraSphere Systems,
pursuant to which we agreed to acquire the membership interests of TerraSphere Systems. The maximum total shares that could be issued for
TerraSphere Systems was estimated to be 6,833 shares of our common stock, which included earn-out share payments of up to 2,921 shares of
our common stock. Pursuant to the purchase agreement, the acquisition was approved by our shareholders on September 16, 2010, and the
Company acquired 95% of the membership interest of TerraSphere Systems on November 12, 2010. We issued 6,556 shares of our common
stock to the members of TerraSphere Systems in exchange for 95% of the units of TerraSphere Systems, subject to certain anti-dilution
adjustments. Of these shares, 3,635 shares were issued on November 12, 2010, the closing of the acquisition, and the remainder of the shares
were to be issued if TerraSphere achieved four milestones. As of the filing date of this report, the four milestones, TerraSphere’s collection of
$2.0 million of its accounts receivable by February 28, 2011 and market capitalization , gross margin as of December 31, 2011 and additional
gross margin at December 31, 2012 were subject to measurement. Those four milestones were not met, and as a result we did not issue any
shares of our common stock associated with the milestones.
TerraSphere Systems is in the business of designing, building, and operating highly efficient and scalable systems, featuring a patented,
proprietary technology that utilizes vertically-stacked modules to house rows of plants, which are then placed perpendicular to an interior light
source to grow pesticide and chemical-free organic fruits and vegetables. Due to a controlled, indoor environment, the system generates fresh
produce year-round in any location or climate world-wide. During all of 2011, we funded the TerraSphere operation and sought additional
financing to build out the TerraSphere business. By the end of 2011, we had not been successful in those efforts and we are unable to continue
to fund the operations. On December 7, 2012, we entered into the Agreement, whereby the Company transferred its entire ownership of
TerraSphere Inc. (100% owned by the Company) and the subsidiaries of TerraSphere Inc. to the Investor for consideration of $5.00. Under the
Agreement, the Investor received all of the assets of TerraSphere Inc. and its subsidiaries and assumed all of the liabilities of TerraSphere Inc.
and its subsidiaries. The assets of TerraSphere at the date of sale were approximately $1,017,000 and the liabilities were approximately
$1,045,000 not including a pending lawsuit. The results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are classified as
discontinued operations as we will no longer derive any revenue from this business segment.
2

We did not achieve our business plans for either the IWR or Vertical Farming segments and we had a severe negative cash flow position
which forced us to curtail all funding of the IWR and Vertical Farming segments. As a result, we then terminated our Industrial Wastewater
Supply and License Agreement and sold our Vertical Farming segment, and we therefore no longer have the ability to derive revenue or cash
from these operations. As a result of these events, the 2012 and 2011 operating activity from those segments have been classified as
discontinued operations.
Our Business Segments
On January 1, 2012, the Company had three business segments which were (1) Organic Fertilizer, (2) Industrial Wastewater Treatment
and (3) Vertical Farming. However, on September 17, 2012, the Company terminated its Industrial Wastewater Supply and License Agreement,
and on December 7, 2012 sold all the assets of the Vertical Farming segment in exchange for the assumption of all Vertical Farming liabilities.
The Company has reported the Industrial Wastewater Treatment and Vertical Farming segments results of operations as discontinued operations
within the 2012 and 2011 consolidated financial statements. Based on the nature of products and services offered, the Company has determined
that its only business segment is Organic Fertilizer at December 31, 2012.
Our operating structure is composed of our parent company, Converted Organics Inc. (“COIN”) and the subsidiaries listed below.
Expenditures at the corporate level (items paid for by COIN) include management and public company expenses, and in 2011 included
expenses associated with its Industrial Wastewater Treatment (“IWR”) business, and the outsourcing of dry product fertilizer production. It was
the intention of management to transfer the operations of IWR and the dry fertilizer product to a subsidiary level when business volumes
became appropriate. The current subsidiaries of COIN are as follows:
•

Converted Organics of California, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of COIN, which includes the operation of our Gonzales, CA
facility.

•

Converted Organics of Woodbridge, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of COIN, which includes the discontinued operation of our
Woodbridge, NJ facility. This subsidiary is no longer active.

•

Converted Organics of Mississippi, LLC, an inactive wholly-owned subsidiary of COIN, originally established for the purpose of
adding a poultry litter-based fertilizer product to the Company’s existing product lines. This subsidiary is no longer active.

Organic Fertilizer Business
We operate a processing facility in Gonzales, CA that uses food and agricultural waste as raw materials to manufacture all-natural
fertilizer and soil amendment products combining nutritional and disease suppression characteristics for sale to our agribusiness market. During
2012, we have not recorded any sales from our production facility in Woodbridge, NJ, as operations at that facility were discontinued and we
will not have sales from that facility in the future. In the first six months of 2011 we contracted with a third party manufacturer and packager to
produce our 8-1-4 dry product to sell to our established retail and turf management customers that were previously serviced by our
Woodbridge, NJ facility. We generated approximately $285,000 in revenue from this outsourced product in 2011 but we have not generated
revenue in 2012 from the outsourced product. Our plan to produce future revenue from the fertilizer business is based upon our continued
operation of our Gonzales, CA facility and possibly licensing the use of our technology to others.
Converted Organics of California, LLC — Gonzales, CA Facility
The Gonzales, CA facility is our production facility that services the West Coast agricultural business customer base through established
distribution channels. This facility uses our proprietary technology and process known as High Temperature Liquid Composting, or HTLC®,
which processes various biodegradable waste products into liquid and food waste-based fertilizer and a limited amount of solids that could be
further processed into a useable form for use in agriculture, retail, and professional turf markets.
The Gonzales, CA facility generated revenues of approximately $1,522,000 and a gross profit of approximately $106,000, or 7% (based
on no allocation of corporate overhead) but did not have positive cash flow for the year ended December 31, 2012. The gross margin of 7% is
significantly less than the 33% achieved in 2011 and the decline is due to lower than anticipated sales and fixed production costs (this is further
discussed in the results of operations section below). This facility did not generate positive cash flow in the last six months of 2012 and
therefore we have limited ability to improve marketing efforts to increase sales or expand production capability at this facility.
In 2008, we entered into certain arrangements whereby we became the exclusive owner of the HTLC® system, which enables the
processing of various biodegradable waste products into liquid and solid food waste-based fertilizer and feed products. In addition, the
acquisition of this technology provides for a technology fee payment of $5,500 per ton of waste-processing capacity for capacity that is either
added to plants that were not planned at the time of this acquisition and that use this technology. There is a 10-year cap for these processing
capacity charges, and no minimum payment is required. This fee did not apply to the Woodbridge, NJ facility and does not apply to the
Gonzales, CA facility, including the planned addition thereto at the time of acquisition, but expansion in excess of the acquisition plan will
trigger payable fees for that excess. The agreement also provides for a 50% profit share with the seller on any portable facilities.
During part of 2011, we were also party to an agreement with Pacific Seafoods Inc. (“Pacific Seafoods”) whereby we agreed to pay
Pacific Seafoods 50% of the profits from the development of a fish-waste product. Under this agreement, the seller of the HTLC® technology
would also be entitled to 50% of our profits from this joint venture. Our profits from this arrangement are thus 25% of the total profits from the
enterprise (50% of total profits net half of the remainder). To date, no profits have been earned from the fish-waste product and the agreement
has expired. We continue to have access to the fish waste from this supplier on an as purchased basis and, if the need for the product continues,
we plan to produce it.
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Combined payments of both the $5,500 per ton technology fee and the profits paid from the fish waste-processing product, if any, are
capped at $7.0 million, with no minimum payment required. It is our intention to expense the payments, if any, that are paid on either the profits
from the fish waste-processing product or the $5,500 per-ton technology fee. We did not have any related payments under these agreements in
either 2011 or 2012.
Converted Organics of Woodbridge, LLC
During the third quarter of 2010, we discontinued the operations of our Woodbridge, NJ facility, which is discussed further in this
section under the caption “Results of Discontinued Operations.”
Organic Fertilizer Detail
Our organic fertilizer is produced exclusively at our Gonzales, CA plant. The plant currently produces predominantly liquid products;
with additional capital it could be modified to enable production of additional dry products as well. Revenue from our fertilizer manufacturing
operations is predominately generated from the sale of liquid product to the agribusiness market in California, though we do generate a small
amount of revenue from tip fees associated with the receipt of food waste at the facility and sell a limited amount of dry products.
We sell and distribute the fertilizer manufactured at the Gonzales, CA plant through a small group of sales professionals who seek out
large purchasers of fertilizer for distribution in our target geographic and product markets. Key activities of the sales organization include the
introduction of our products to target clients and the development of our relationships with them. Due to our small size, we believe that the most
efficient means of distributing our products is through regional distributors, and this method currently accounts for the majority of our sales. To
the extent that we make sales directly to customers, we generally require our customers to handle delivery of the product.
Technology. To generate product for sale, we use our proprietary HTLC® process to convert food waste and other feedstock into
fertilizer. In simplified terms, the process operates by encouraging naturally-occurring microbes to consume prepared feedstock. The action of
the microbes on the feedstock is exothermic (heat-releasing), and causes the temperature of the feedstock to rise to very high, pathogendestroying levels. Subsequently, thermophilic (heat-loving) bacteria naturally occurring in the food waste utilize oxygen to convert the waste
into a rich blend of nutrients and single-cell proteins (aerobic digestion). Feedstock preparation, digestion temperature, rate of oxygen addition,
acidity, and inoculation of the microbial regime are carefully controlled to produce products that are highly consistent from batch to batch. The
HTLC® method can be used in any future operating plants, whether owned by us or licensed.
Operations. Our Gonzales, CA facility is our sole producer of our fertilizer product. During 2012 and 2011, we realized
approximately $1.5 million and $2.5 million of revenue, respectively, from the sale of fertilizer from this facility.
Prior to the closing of our Woodbridge, NJ plant in 2010 (see Item 7 — “Discontinued Operations”), we sold dry product and received
revenue from tip fees from this facility. However, we did not achieve significant sales of liquid product from this facility. Sales of the dry
product related primarily to retail and professional lawn care customers, and in order to maintain relationships with those customers, we
outsourced the production of a dry fertilizer product to be sold to some of our existing retail and professional lawn care customers in the spring
of 2011. Due to cash constraints, we do not plan to continue the production of this outsourced dry fertilizer product in 2012. Therefore, we will
not maintain these customers for future sales of product produced under this method.
Benefits of Our Fertilizer Products and Technology. The efficacy of our products has been demonstrated both in university
laboratories and multi-year growth trials. These field trials have been conducted on more than a dozen crops including potatoes, tomatoes,
squash, blueberries, grapes, cotton, and turf grass. While these studies have not been published, peer-reviewed, or otherwise subject to thirdparty scrutiny, we believe that the trials and other data show our products to have several valuable attributes:
• Plant Nutrition. Historically, growers have focused on the nitrogen (N), phosphorous (P) and potassium (K) content of fertilizers.
As agronomists have gained a better understanding of the importance of soil culture, they have turned their attention to humic and
fulvic acids, phytohormones, and other micronutrients and growth regulators not present in petrochemical-based fertilizers. We
believe that the presence of such ingredients in our fertilizer may cause its use to have significant beneficial effects on soil and plant
health.
• Disease Suppression. Based on field trials of product produced using our technology, we believe our products possess disease
suppression characteristics that may eliminate or significantly reduce the need for fungicides and other crop protection products. The
products’ disease suppression properties have been observed under controlled laboratory conditions and in documented field trials.
We also have field reports that have shown the liquid concentrate to be effective in reducing the severity of powdery mildew on
grapes, the verticillium pressure on tomatoes, and the scab in potatoes.
• Soil amendment. As a result of its slow-release nature, our dry fertilizer product increases the organic content of soil, which
improves granularity and water retention and thus reduces NPK leaching and run-off.
• Pathogen-free.

Due to high processing temperatures, our products are virtually pathogen-free and have an extended shelf life.

In addition to these agricultural benefits, we have also achieved Organic Materials Review Institute (OMRI) and/or Washington State
Department of Agriculture (WSDA) certification for many of our products, allowing growers to use them in certified organic farming.
Competition. We operate in a very competitive environment. The organic fertilizer business requires us to compete in three separate
areas — organic waste stream feedstock, technology, and end products — each of which is quickly evolving. We believe we will be able to
compete effectively, with adequate financial resources, because of the abundance of the supply of food waste in our geographic markets, the
pricing of our tip fees, and the quality of our products and technology.
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Organic Waste Stream Feedstock. Competition for the organic waste stream feedstock includes landfills, incinerators, animal feed,
land application, and traditional composting operations.
Technology. There are a variety of methods used to treat organic wastes, including composting, digestion, hydrolysis, and thermal
processing. Companies using these technologies may compete with us for organic material. These methods are defined as follows:
• Composting. Composting is a natural process of decomposition that can be accelerated through the mounding of waste into
windrows to retain the heat given off by bacteria involved in the decomposition process. Given the difficulties in controlling this
process, the resulting compost is often inconsistent and generally would command a lower market price than our product. Further,
large-scale composting facilities require significant amounts of land for operations, which, particularly in major metropolitan areas,
may either not be readily available or may be too costly.
• Digestion. Digestion may be either aerobic (requiring oxygen) like the HTLC® process, or anaerobic (occurring without oxygen).
Anaerobic digestion generally takes longer and produces significantly more odor as a result of the production of ammonia and
methane, the latter of which is also a greenhouse gas. The methane gas produced has some value as a source of energy, but it is not
readily transported and is thus generally limited to on-site use.
• Hydrolysis. Hydrolysis is a chemical process by which water reacts with another substance, and it is usually catalyzed through the
introduction of an acid. This reaction is used to convert cellulose present in the organic waste into sugars, which in turn may be
converted into ethanol.
• Thermal. Thermal technologies work by either completely or partially combusting organic materials for the purpose of generating
electricity. Partial combustion methods may also lead to the production of useful and saleable byproducts, such as a variety of gases
(e.g. hydrogen, carbon monoxide, and carbon dioxide) and organic liquids.
End Products. The organic fertilizer business is highly fragmented, under-capitalized, and growing rapidly. We are unaware of any
dominant producers or products currently in the market. There are a number of single-input, protein-based products, such as fish, bone, and
cottonseed meal, which can be used alone or mixed with chemical additives to create highly formulated fertilizer blends that target specific soil
and crop needs. In this sense, they are similar to our products and provide additional competition in the organic fertilizer market. In the future,
large producers of non-organic fertilizer may also increase their presence in the organic fertilizer market, and these companies are generally
better-capitalized and have greater financial and marketing resources than we do.
Most of the fertilizer consumed annually in North America is mined or derived from natural gas or petroleum. These petroleum-based
products generally have higher nutrient content (NPK) and cost less than organic fertilizers. Traditional petrochemical fertilizers are highly
soluble and readily leach from the soil, and slow-release products, which must be coated or specially processed, command a premium. The
economic value offered by petrochemicals, especially for field crops including corn, wheat, hay, and soybeans, will not be supplanted in the
foreseeable future. We compete with large producers of non-organic fertilizers, many of which are significantly larger and better-capitalized than
we are. In addition, we compete with numerous smaller producers of fertilizer.
Despite a large number of new products in the end market, we believe that our products have a unique set of characteristics. We believe
positioning and branding the combination of nutrition and disease suppression characteristics will differentiate our products from other organic
fertilizers to develop market demand, while maintaining or increasing pricing.
Target Markets. In the U.S., the majority of fertilizer is consumed by agribusiness, with the professional turf and retail segments
consuming the remainder. The concern of farmers, gardeners, and landscapers about nutrient runoffs, soil health, and other long-term effects of
conventional chemical fertilizers has increased demand for organic fertilizer. We have identified three target markets for our products, however
due to cash and production limitations we are presently only marketing product into the agribusiness market:
• Agribusiness.

Conventional farms, organic farms, horticulture, hydroponics, and aquaculture.

• Turf Management. Professional lawn care and landscaping, golf courses, and sod farms, as well as commercial, government, and
institutional facilities.
• Retail Sales.

Home improvement outlets, garden supply stores, nurseries, Internet sales, and shopping networks.

Agribusiness. We believe there are two primary business drivers influencing commercial agriculture. First, commercial farmers are
focused on improving the economic yield of their land — i.e., maximizing the value derived from crop output (quantity and quality). Second,
commercial farmers have begun to recognize the importance of reducing the use of chemical products while also meeting the demand for costeffective, environmentally responsible alternatives. We believe this change in focus is the result of:
• Consumer demand for safer, higher quality food;
• The limitation on the use of certain synthetic products by government authorities, including nutrients such as nitrogen and chemicals
such as methyl bromide;
• Environmental concerns and the demand for sustainable technologies;
• Demand for more food for the growing world population.
We believe farmers are facing pressures to change from conventional production practices to more environmentally friendly practices.
U.S. agricultural producers are turning to certified organic farming methods as a potential way to lower production costs, decrease reliance on
nonrenewable resources such as chemical fertilizers, increase market share with an “organically grown” label and capture premium prices,

nonrenewable resources such as chemical fertilizers, increase market share with an “organically grown” label and capture premium prices,
thereby boosting farm income.
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Governmental Regulation. Our end products are regulated by federal, state, county, and local governments, as well as various agencies
thereof, including the United States Department of Agriculture.
In addition to the regulations governing the sale of our end products, our current facility and any future facilities are subject to extensive
regulation. Specific permit and approval requirements are set by the state and state agencies, as well as local jurisdictions including but not
limited to cities, towns, and counties. Any changes to our plant or procedures would likely require permit modifications.
Environmental regulations will also govern the operation of our current facility and any future facilities. Regulatory agencies may require
us to remediate environmental conditions at our locations.
Future Development. We need additional capital to build additional plants to grow the business or we need to license others to use the
technology. We do not have sufficient funds to build additional facilities and we have no plans to raise such funds.
Employees
As of March 15, 2013, we had twelve employees. Seven employees work in connection with our Organic Fertilizer segment (one in
sales and six in operations), and five in management and administration (of these, two are part time).
Our Website and Availability of SEC Reports and Other Information
Our corporate website is located at www.convertedorganics.com. The information contained on our website does not constitute part of
this Form 10-K. We file with or furnish to the SEC Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on
Form 8-K and any amendment to those reports, proxy statements and annual reports to shareholders, and, from time to time, other documents.
The reports and other documents filed with or furnished to the SEC are available to investors on or through our corporate website free of charge
as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file them with or furnish them to the SEC. In addition, the public may read and copy
any of the materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington DC 20549. The public may
obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an internet site
that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers, such as the Company, that file electronically
with the SEC. The address of that website is http://www.sec.gov. Our SEC filings and our Code of Ethics may be found on the Investor
Relations page of our website at ir.convertedorganics.com. These documents are available in print to any shareholder who requests a copy by
writing or calling our corporate headquarters.
ITEM 1A.

RISK FACTORS

Investors in our securities should carefully consider the risks, uncertainties and other factors described below because they could
materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, operating results and prospects and could negatively affect the market price of
our securities. Investors in our securities should also refer to the other information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including
our consolidated financial statements and the related notes.
Risks Related to our Business
We could fail to remain a going concern. We will need to raise additional capital to fund our operations through the near term, and we
do not have any commitments for that capital.
There exists substantial doubt regarding our ability to continue as a going concern. Our independent registered public accounting firm has
added an explanatory paragraph to their report for the year ended December 31, 2012 with respect to our ability to continue as a going concern.
Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and the
satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. If we became unable to continue as a going concern, we would have to liquidate our
assets and we might receive significantly less than the values at which they are carried on our consolidated financial statements. In addition, our
outstanding debt is secured by our assets; therefore, any value we receive from the sale of or assets in liquidation would be first utilized to repay
our outstanding debt. As such, it is unlikely that our equity holders would receive any value in such a liquidation. The inclusion of a going
concern paragraph in our independent registered public accounting firm’s audit opinion for the year ended December 31, 2012 may materially
and adversely affect our stock or our ability to raise new capital.
If the Company does not receive additional funds from external funding sources or from the continued sale of convertible notes in 2013,
the Company will not have sufficient cash to be able to continue its operations. The Company anticipates that it will exhaust its cash position as
of March 31, 2013 and unless additional financing can be secured (for which there are no commitments) the Company will not be able to
continue operations after March 31, 2013. Therefore, since the fourth quarter of 2011, in order to conserve cash, the Company has determined
to continue operations in the organic fertilizer business segment while curtailing all but essential personnel at the corporate level and in 2012,
terminated its operations in the Industrial Wastewater Treatment segment and sold its operations in the Vertical Farming segments. While it is
uncertain whether there will be positive cash flows from the Organic Fertilizer segment, any such cash flows will continue to be directly
generated as part of the ongoing operations and continued involvement of the Company.
We will need to obtain additional financing to fund our operations, and such financing has in the past and will continue to result in
substantial dilution to our shareholders, and will likely result in the need for us to implement future reverse stock splits.
To meet future capital requirements necessary to fund our business, we have and will, to the extent available to us, continue to issue
convertible notes. In 2011 and 2012, we issued a series of senior secured convertible notes to fund our operations. These notes are convertible
into our common stock at a conversion price equal to 80% of our lowest stock bid prices on the day of conversion. Due to our historically low
stock price, the conversion of these notes has resulted in a massive number of shares being issued, which required us to effect a 1:10 reverse
split in November 2011 and a 1:500 reverse split in February 2012 in order to maintain sufficient shares to permit the conversions. In addition,

split in November 2011 and a 1:500 reverse split in February 2012 in order to maintain sufficient shares to permit the conversions. In addition,
if the price of our common stock remains at current levels, we would still not have sufficient shares to permit the full conversion of the notes
which means we would be required to either repay the note in cash, which we do not have, or to implement a reverse stock split, one of which
was approved by our shareholders on June 8, 2012 or request approval from our shareholders to complete one or more additional reverse stock
splits.
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If the National Organic Program changes its standards with respect to the use of any ingredient in organic fertilizer production, we
may no longer be allowed to sell certain of our products into the organic markets, which would materially lower sales at our Gonzales,
CA facility.
We are subject to regulation by the National Organic Standards Board (NOSB) with regard to ingredients included in the production of
organic fertilizers. Currently, all of the ingredients used in our organic fertilizer production are classified as organic; however, the NOSB does
meet to reconsider items on a periodic basis. In 2011 they reviewed Corn Steep Liquor, one of our major components of production and the
organic classification was not changed for that ingredient.
We expect to incur significant losses for some time, and we may never operate profitably.
From inception through December 31, 2012, we have incurred a substantial accumulated net loss. The revenues that we began to generate
from our Gonzales, CA facility in February 2008 have not yet resulted in our earning a profit, and we will continue to incur significant losses
for at least the near future. There is no assurance that our operations will ever become profitable.
We are exposed to risks from legislation requiring companies to evaluate internal control over financial reporting.
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Section 404”) requires our management to report on the operating effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting. We must continue an ongoing program of system and process evaluation and testing necessary to
comply with these requirements. We expect that this program will require us to incur significant expenses and to devote additional resources to
Section 404 compliance on an ongoing annual basis. We cannot predict how regulators will react or how the market prices of our securities will
be affected in the event that our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer determine that our internal control over financial reporting
is not effective as defined under Section 404.
Our future success is dependent on our existing key employees and hiring and assimilating new key employees; our inability to attract
or retain key personnel in the future would materially harm our business and results of operations.
Our success depends on the continuing efforts and abilities of our current management team. In addition, our future success will depend,
in part, on our ability to attract and retain highly skilled employees, including management, technical and sales personnel. We may be unable to
identify and attract highly qualified employees in the future. In addition, we may not be able to successfully assimilate these employees or hire
qualified personnel to replace them if they leave the Company. The loss of the services of any of our key personnel, the inability to attract or
retain key personnel in the future, or delays in hiring required personnel could materially harm our business and results of operations.
We may be unable to establish marketing and sales capabilities necessary to commercialize and gain market acceptance for our
products.
We currently have limited resources with which to expand our sales and marketing capabilities. Co-promotion or other marketing
arrangements to commercialize our planned products could significantly limit the revenues we derive from our products, and the parties with
whom we would enter into such agreements may fail to commercialize our products successfully. Our products address different markets and
can be offered through multiple sales channels. Addressing each market effectively will require sales and marketing resources tailored to the
particular market and to the sales channels that we choose to employ, and we may not be able to develop such specialized marketing resources.
Energy and fuel cost variations could adversely affect operating results and expenses.
Energy costs, particularly electricity and natural gas, constitute a substantial portion of our operating expenses. The price and supply of
energy and natural gas are unpredictable and fluctuate based on events outside our control, including demand for oil and gas, weather, actions
by OPEC and other oil and gas producers, and conflict in oil-producing countries. Price escalations in the cost of electricity or reductions in the
supply of natural gas could increase operating expenses and negatively affect our results of operations. We may not be able to pass through all
or part of the increased energy and fuel costs to our customers.
Successful infringement claims by third parties could result in substantial damages, lost product sales and the loss of important
proprietary rights.
We may have to defend ourselves against patent and other infringement claims asserted by third parties regarding the technology we own
or have licensed, resulting in diversion of management focus and additional expenses for the defense of claims. In addition, if a patent
infringement suit was brought, we might be forced to stop or delay the development, manufacture or sales of potential products that were
claimed to infringe a patent covering a third party’s intellectual property unless that party granted us rights to use its intellectual property. We
may be unable to obtain these rights on terms acceptable to us, if at all. If we cannot obtain all necessary licenses or other such rights on
commercially reasonable terms, we may be unable to continue selling such products. Even if we are able to obtain certain rights to a third party’s
patented intellectual property, these rights may be non-exclusive, and therefore our competitors may obtain access to the same intellectual
property. Ultimately, we may be unable to commercialize our potential products or may have to cease some or all of our business operations as a
result of patent infringement claims, which could severely harm our business.
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Defects in our products or failures in quality control could impair our ability to sell our products or could result in product liability
claims, litigation and other significant events with substantial additional costs.
Detection of any significant defects in our products or failure in our quality control procedures may result in, among other things, delay
in time-to-market, loss of sales and market acceptance of our products, diversion of development resources, and injury to our reputation. The
costs we may incur in correcting any product defects may be substantial. Additionally, errors, defects or other performance problems could
result in financial or other damages to our customers, which could result in litigation. Product liability litigation, even if we prevail, would be
time consuming and costly to defend, and if we do not prevail, could result in the imposition of a damages award. We presently maintain
product liability insurance; however, it may not be adequate to cover any claims.
Changes in environmental regulations or violations of such regulations could result in increased expense and could have a material
negative effect on our financial performance.
We are subject to extensive air, water and other environmental regulations and need to maintain our environmental permits, and need to
obtain a number of environmental permits to construct and operate our business segments. If for any reason any of these permits are not
maintained or granted, construction costs for our facilities may increase, or the facilities may not be constructed at all. Additionally, any changes
in environmental laws and regulations, both at the federal and state level, could require us to invest or spend considerable resources in order to
comply with future environmental regulations. In 2010, we were fined for alleged environmental violations in connection with the operation of
our Woodbridge, NJ facility. Our failure to comply with environmental regulations could cause us to lose our required permits, which could
cause the interruption or cessation of our operations. Furthermore, the expense of compliance could be significant enough to adversely affect
our operation and have a material negative effect on our financial performance.
Our facilities will require certain permits to operate, which we may not be able to obtain at all or obtain on a timely basis.
For our Gonzales, CA facility, we have obtained the permits and approvals required to operate the facilities. We may not be able to secure
all the necessary permits for future facilities on a timely basis or at all, which may prevent us or potential licensees from operating such facilities
according to our business plan.
For future facilities, we may need certain permits to operate solid waste or recycling facilities, as well as permits for our sewage
connection, water supply, land use, air emission, and wastewater discharge. The specific permit and approval requirements are set by the state
and the various local jurisdictions, including but not limited to city, town, county, township, and state agencies having control over the specific
properties. Permits once given may be withdrawn. Inability to obtain or maintain permits to construct, operate or maintain our facilities will
severely and adversely affect our business.
The fertilizer industry is highly competitive, which may adversely affect our ability to generate and grow sales.
Chemical fertilizers are manufactured by many companies, are plentiful, and are relatively inexpensive. In addition, there are over 1,700
“crop products” registered as “organic” with the Organic Materials Review Institute, a number that has more than doubled since 2002. If we fail
to keep up with changes affecting the markets that we intend to serve, we will become less competitive, thereby adversely affecting our financial
performance.
Pressure by our customers to reduce prices and agree to long-term supply arrangements may adversely affect our net sales and profit
margins.
Our current and potential customers, especially large agricultural companies, are often under budgetary pressure and are very price
sensitive. Our customers may negotiate supply arrangements with us well in advance of delivery dates, thereby requiring us to commit to
product prices before we can accurately determine our final costs. If this happens, we may have to reduce our conversion costs and obtain
higher volume orders to offset lower average sales prices. If we are unable to offset lower sales prices by reducing our costs, our gross profit
margins will decline, which could have a material negative effect on our financial performance.
Our HTLC® technology imposes obligations on us related to infringement actions that may become burdensome.
If the use of our HTLC® technology is alleged to infringe the intellectual property of a third party, we may become obligated to defend
such infringement action. In such an event, we may become obligated to find alternative technology or to pay a royalty to a third party in order
to continue to operate.
If a third party is allegedly infringing any of our HTLC® technology, then we may attempt to enforce our intellectual property rights. In
general, our possession of rights to use the know-how related to our HTLC® technology will not be sufficient to prevent others from employing
similar technology that we believe is infringing. Any such enforcement action against alleged infringers may be required at our expense. The
costs of such an enforcement action may be prohibitive, reduce our net income, if any, or prevent us from continuing operations.
Our Gonzales, CA and discontinued Woodbridge, NJ facilities, as well as future facility sites, may have unknown environmental
problems that could be expensive and time-consuming to correct.
There can be no assurance that we will not encounter hazardous environmental conditions at the Gonzales, CA facility site or at any
additional future facility sites that may delay the construction of our food waste conversion facilities or require us to incur significant clean-up or
correction costs. Upon encountering a hazardous environmental condition, our contractor may suspend work in the affected area. If we receive
notice of a hazardous environmental condition, we may be required to correct the condition prior to continuing construction. The presence of a
hazardous environmental condition will likely delay construction of the particular facility and may require significant expenditures to correct the
environmental condition. If we encounter any hazardous environmental conditions during construction that require time or money to correct,
such event could delay our ability to generate revenue.

such event could delay our ability to generate revenue.
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We have little or no experience in the fertilizer industry, which increases the risk of our inability to build or license our facilities and
operate our business.
We are currently, and are likely for some time to continue to be, dependent upon our present management team. Most of these individuals
are experienced both in business generally and in the governance and operation of public companies. However, our present management team
does not have experience in organizing the construction, equipping, and start-up of a food waste conversion facility, except for our Gonzales,
CA and our former Woodbridge, NJ facilities. In addition, none of our directors has any prior experience in the food waste conversion or
fertilizer products industries. As a result, we may not develop our business successfully.
The communities where our facilities may be located may be averse to hosting waste handling and manufacturing facilities.
Local residents and authorities in communities where our facilities may be located may be concerned about odor, vermin, noise, increased
truck traffic, air pollution, decreased property values, and public health risks associated with operating a manufacturing facility in their area.
These constituencies may oppose our permitting applications or raise other issues regarding our proposed facilities or bring legal challenges to
prevent us from constructing or operating facilities.
During the start-up phase at the former Woodbridge, NJ facility, we experienced odor-related issues. As a result of these issues, we were
assessed fines from the Health Department of Middlesex County, New Jersey and had been named as a party in a lawsuit by a neighboring
business. With respect to the fines assessed by the Health Department, we have negotiated a settlement agreement for the full amount of fines
assessed. With respect to the litigation, the plaintiff has alleged various causes of action connected to the odors emanating from the facility and
in addition to monetary damages, sought enjoinment of any and all operations which in any way cause or contribute to the alleged pollution.
This litigation was eventually dismissed without any finding of wrong doing on our part; however, any new litigation may be subject us to
judgments or fines, or our operations may be interrupted or terminated. Even though we have discontinued the operations at our Woodbridge,
NJ facility these issues could occur at future owned or licensed facilities.
We are dependent on a small number of major customers for our revenues and the loss of any of these major customers would
adversely affect our results of operations.
Our Gonzales, CA facility relies on a few major customers for a majority of their revenues. During 2012, approximately 58% of the
revenues generated by the Gonzales, CA facility were from a total of three customers. During 2011, approximately 53% of the revenues
generated by the Gonzales, CA facility were from a total of four customers. We do not have any long-term agreements with any of our
customers. The loss of any of our major customers could adversely affect our results of operations.
We have a significant number of warrants outstanding, and while these warrants are outstanding, it may be more difficult to raise
additional equity capital. Additionally, certain of these warrants contain anti-dilution and price-protection provisions that may result in
the reduction of their exercise prices in the future.
In connection with past financings, we have issued a significant number of warrants, certain of which, contain anti-dilution and priceprotection provisions that may result in the reduction of their exercise prices in the future. Furthermore, the warrants issued in our January
2012, March 2012 and January 2013 financings, contain price-protection provisions under which, if we were to issue securities at a price lower
than the exercise price of such warrants, the exercise price of the warrants would be reduced, with certain exceptions, to the lower price, and the
number of shares underlying such warrants would be increased proportionately. We may find it more difficult to raise additional equity capital
while these warrants are outstanding.
If we issue shares of preferred stock, investments in common stock could be diluted or subordinated to the rights of the holders of
preferred stock.
Our Board of Directors is authorized by our Certificate of Incorporation to establish classes or series of preferred stock and fix the
designation, powers, preferences and rights of the shares of each such class or series without any further vote or action by our stockholders.
Any shares of preferred stock so issued could have priority over our common stock with respect to dividend or liquidation rights. The issuance
of shares of preferred stock, or the issuance of rights to purchase such shares, could be used to discourage an unsolicited acquisition proposal.
For instance, the issuance of a series of preferred stock might impede a business combination by including class voting rights that would enable
a holder to block such a transaction. In addition, under certain circumstances, the issuance of preferred stock could adversely affect the voting
power of holders of our common stock. Although our Board of Directors is required to make any determination to issue preferred stock based
on its judgment as to the best interests of our stockholders, our Board could act in a manner that would discourage an acquisition attempt or
other transaction that some, or a majority, of our stockholders might believe to be in their best interests or in which such stockholders might
receive a premium for their stock over the then-market price of such stock. Presently, our Board of Directors does not intend to seek
stockholder approval prior to the issuance of currently authorized preferred stock, unless otherwise required by law or applicable stock
exchange rules. Although we have no plans to issue any additional shares of preferred stock or to adopt any new series, preferences or other
classification of preferred stock, any such action by our Board of Directors or issuance of preferred stock by us could dilute your investment in
our common stock and warrants or subordinate your holdings to such shares of preferred stock.
Future issuances or sales, or the potential for future issuances or sales, of shares of our common stock, the exercise of warrants to
purchase our common stock, or the conversion of convertible notes into our common stock, may cause the trading price of our
securities to decline and could impair our ability to raise capital through subsequent equity offerings.
During 2012, we issued a significant number of shares of our common stock, warrants to acquire shares of our common stock, preferred
stock convertible into shares of our common stock, and convertible notes that may be converted into our common stock in connection with
various financings and the repayment of debt, and we anticipate that we will continue to do so in the future. The additional shares of our
common stock issued and to be issued in the future upon the exercise of warrants or options or the conversion of debt could cause the market
price of our common stock to decline, and could have an adverse effect on our earnings per share if and when we become profitable. In

price of our common stock to decline, and could have an adverse effect on our earnings per share if and when we become profitable. In
addition, future sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock or other securities in the public markets, or the perception that
these sales may occur, could cause the market price of our common stock and our Class H warrants to decline, and could materially impair our
ability to raise capital through the sale of additional securities.
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ITEM 1B.

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

There are no unresolved staff comments.
ITEM 2.

PROPERTIES

We have a lease for land in Gonzales, CA, where our Gonzales, CA facility is located. The land is leased from VLH, a California LLC
whose sole member is a former officer and former director of the Company, and which was consolidated in our financial statements from
January 2008 through April 2009. The lease provides for a monthly rent of $10,433. The lease is renewable for three 5-year terms after the
expiration of the initial 10-year term. In addition, we own the Gonzales, CA facility and the operating equipment used in the facility.
On November 24, 2009 we signed a lease for office space for our headquarters in Boston, Massachusetts. The lease is for 3 years and
provides 4,510 square feet of usable space for a monthly rent of $9,772. We terminated this lease in May 2012. We now lease, on a month-tomonth basis, approximately 2,500 square feet of office space in Boston, Massachusetts. We pay rent of $2,800 per month for this space. We
may terminate this additional lease at any time upon 30 days advance written notice.
TerraSphere Systems, LLC’s Vancouver facility has a lease, which commenced November 1, 2009 and has a five year term. Rent was
$89,900 per year for 2011 through 2013. This lease and all obligations associated with it were assumed by the purchaser of TerraSphere Inc. on
December 7, 2012.
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

ITEM 3.

On August 25, 2011, TerraSphere Inc., our wholly owned subsidiary, was named as a defendant in an action filed in the United States
district court for the eastern district of Michigan against TerraSphere Systems, LLC and TerraSphere Inc. The plaintiff alleges, among other
things, breach of fiduciary responsibilities regarding a joint venture agreement. The parties sought to resolve this matter but were unsuccessful.
Responsive pleadings were filed and TerraSphere Inc. has been dismissed from the lawsuit. TerraSphere Systems, LLC remains a defendant,
however, any obligation to defend or loss resulting from this lawsuit was assumed by the purchaser of TerraSphere, Inc. on December 7, 2012.
In January 2012, Converted Organics Inc. (the “Company”) received notice that a complaint has been filed in the United States District
Court for the District of Massachusetts, captioned Aboriginal Import Export, Ltd. and Nicholas G. Brusatore (the “plaintiffs”) v. TerraSphere
Systems LLC, Converted Organics Inc., William A. Gildea, Edward Gildea, Mark C. Gildea, and TerraSphere Inc. (the “defendants”). The
allegations in the complaint relate to the Company’s acquisition of TerraSphere Systems, LLC in November 2010. On April 27, 2012, the
parties entered into a settlement agreement pursuant to which the plaintiffs voluntarily dismissed the action with prejudice and without costs or
fees. Pursuant to the settlement agreement, the parties agreed to terminate the restrictive covenant included in the acquisition agreement regarding
the ability of the plaintiffs to compete with the Company. In addition, the parties agreed to release their claims against each other as they related
to the legal action or the acquisition agreement pursuant to which the Company acquired TerraSphere Systems, LLC.
The Company has four lawsuits associated with the collection of unsecured accounts payable due to the close of its New Jersey facility in
2010. The amounts of these accounts payable are listed as a liability of discontinued operations on our consolidated balance sheet.
ITEM 4.

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
PART II
ITEM 5.

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information
Our common stock was listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “COIN” from March 16, 2007 until July 6, 2011.
Since July 7, 2011 our common stock has been quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol “COIN.OB” and “COIN.PK.” The
following table sets forth the range of high and low closing prices per share as reported on NASDAQ and the high and low bid price for our
common stock on the OTC Bulletin Board (such OTC Bulletin Board prices reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail markup, markdown, or
commission, and may not represent actual transactions).
2011
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$

10

High
0.49
0.30
0.06
0.04

$

Low
0.31
0.07
0.05
0.001

2012
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$

High
0.02
0.02
.006
.004

$

Low
0.01
.006
0.001
0.001

Holders
As of March 15, 2013, there were approximately 8,500 beneficial holders of the Company’s common stock.
Dividends
We have not declared or paid any cash dividends and do not intend to pay any cash dividends. We intend to retain any future earnings for
use in the operation and expansion of our business. Any future decision to pay cash dividends on common stock will be at the discretion of our
Board of Directors and will depend upon, our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements and other factors our Board of
Directors may deem relevant.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.
Purchase of Equity Securities by the Small Business Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers
None.
ITEM 6.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not applicable.
ITEM 7.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our plan of operation should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related
notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that relate
to future events or our future financial performance. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that
may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, levels of activity,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. These risks and other factors include, among others,
those listed under “Risk Factors” and those included elsewhere in this document. Actual results could differ materially from these forwardlooking statements. Converted Organics Inc. is sometimes referred to herein as “we,” “us,” “our” and the “Company.”
Introduction
As of December 31, 2012, we operated in one business segment, Organic Fertilizer, and had discontinued the operations in our Industrial
Wastewater Treatment and Vertical Farming segments.
Our operating structure is composed of our parent company, Converted Organics Inc. (“COIN”), and the subsidiaries listed below.
Expenditures at the corporate level (items paid for by COIN) include management and public company expenses, along with the expenses
associated with its Industrial Wastewater Treatment business (“IWR”) prior to its discontinuation, and the outsourcing of dry product fertilizer
production. It was the intention of management to transfer the operations of IWR and the dry fertilizer product to a subsidiary level when
business volumes became appropriate. The current subsidiaries of COIN are as follows:
• Converted Organics of California, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of COIN, which includes the operation of our Gonzales, CA
facility.
• Converted Organics of Woodbridge, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of COIN, which includes the discontinued operation of our
Woodbridge, NJ facility. This subsidiary is no longer active.
• Converted Organics of Mississippi, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of COIN, established for the purpose of adding a poultry litterbased fertilizer product to the Company’s existing product lines. This subsidiary is no longer active.
Organic Fertilizer Business
We operate a processing facility (Gonzales, CA) that uses food and agricultural waste as raw materials to manufacture all-natural fertilizer
and soil amendment products combining nutritional and disease suppression characteristics for sales to our agribusiness market. During 2011,
we did not record any sales from our production facility in Woodbridge NJ, as operations at that facility were discontinued and we will not have
sales from that facility in the future. However, in early 2011 we contracted with a third party manufacturer and packager to produce our 8-1-4
dry product to sell to our established retail and turf management customers that were previously serviced by our Woodbridge, NJ facility. We
generated approximately $285,000 in revenue from this outsourced product in 2011 but we did not generate revenue in 2012 from the
outsourced product. Our plan to produce future revenue from the fertilizer business is based upon our continued operation of our Gonzales, CA

outsourced product. Our plan to produce future revenue from the fertilizer business is based upon our continued operation of our Gonzales, CA
facility and possibly the licensing the use of our technology to others.
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Converted Organics of California, LLC — Gonzales, CA Facility
The Gonzales, CA facility is our production facility that services the West Coast agribusiness customer base through established
distribution channels. This facility uses our proprietary technology and process known as High Temperature Liquid Composting, or HTLC®,
which processes various biodegradable waste products into liquid and food waste-based fertilizer and a limited amount of solids that could be
further processed into a useable form for use in agriculture, retail, and professional turf markets.
The Gonzales, CA facility generated revenues of approximately $1,522,000 and a gross profit of approximately $106,000, or 7% (based
on no allocation of corporate overhead) but did not have positive cash flow for the year ended December 31, 2012. The gross margin of 7% is
significantly less than the 33% achieved in 2011 and the decline is due to lower than anticipated sales and fixed production costs (this is further
discussed in the results of operations section below). This facility did not generate positive cash flow in the last six months of 2012 and
therefore we have limited ability to improve marketing efforts to increase sales or expand production capability at this facility.
Converted Organics of Woodbridge, LLC
During the third quarter of 2010 we discontinued the operations of our Woodbridge, NJ facility which is discussed further in this section
under the caption “Results of Discontinued Operations.”
2011, 2012 and 2013 Financing Activities
On April 1, 2011, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with an institutional investor whereby we sold to the investor a
convertible note in the aggregate original principal amount of $3,850,000 (the “Original Note”), which was convertible into shares of our
common stock. The Original Note was issued with an original issue discount of approximately 9.1%, and the proceeds from the Original Note
were $3,500,000. The Original Note was noninterest bearing. On November 2, 2011, we entered into an agreement pursuant to which we
agreed with the holder of the Original Note to exchange the Original Note, which had $3,474,797 of principal outstanding on November 2,
2011, for a senior secured convertible note in the aggregate original principal amount of $3,474,797 (the “Note”).
The terms of the Note we issued on November 2, 2011 were substantially identical to the terms of the Original Note, except that we were
not required to amortize payment for the Note and the maturity date of the Note was extended to May 2, 2012, instead of February 17, 2012.
On April 13, 2012, the investor converted the entire remaining balance of the Note into shares of our common stock and the entire
balance on this note as of December 31, 2012 was relieved.
Pursuant to the terms of the Original Note and as retained in the Note, we also agreed to issue to the Note holder warrants to acquire
shares of common stock, in the form of three warrants: (i) “Series A Warrants”, (ii) “Series B Warrants” and (iii) “Series C Warrants”. The
Series B and C Warrants expired in May 2012.
In April 2012, we agreed to the following amendments (the “April Warrant Amendments”) to the Series A Warrants: (1) the anti-dilution
price protection currently contained in such warrants (which provides that if we issue common stock or common stock equivalents at a price per
share that is lower than the exercise price of the warrants, the exercise price of the warrants will be reduced to such lower price) will now also
apply to issuances of common stock or common stock equivalents to the warrant holders under separate securities; (2) upon any adjustment in
the exercise price of the warrants as described in (1) above or otherwise, the number of shares of common stock underlying such warrants shall
be increased such that the aggregate exercise price of the warrants will remain the same; and (3) upon a Fundamental Transaction (as defined in
each of the warrants), the warrant holders will be permitted to require us (or any successor entity) to purchase the warrants from the warrant
holders at a price equal to the greater of (A) the Black Scholes value of the warrants or (B) the product of $0.10 multiplied by the number of
shares underlying such warrants (disregarding, for the purposes of making the calculation of the number of shares underlying the warrants, any
adjustments to such share number arising solely from an adjustment to the exercise price of the warrants due to the completion of a combination
(or reverse split) of our common stock after April 2012, provided that the amount payable to the warrant holders pursuant to (B) above will not
exceed $25.0 million in the aggregate.
The Series A Warrants are exercisable six months and one day after issuance and have a five year term commencing on the initial
exercise date. As of December 31, 2012, there are no Series A warrants outstanding as they were repurchased by us in the September 27, 2012
exchange agreement (see section below).
On January 3, 2012, we entered into an agreement with an institutional investor whereby we agreed to sell to the investor twelve senior
secured convertible notes (the “January Notes”). The initial January Note was issued on January 3, 2012 in an original principal amount of
$247,500, for a purchase price of $225,000. The remaining eleven January Notes will each have an original principal amount of up to $237,600,
and will each be issued for a purchase price of $216,000. Each January Note matures eight months after issuance. The total face value of the
twelve notes under this agreement will be $2,861,100, assuming each note is sold to the investor for the full amount, of which there is no
assurance. The January Notes are convertible into shares of our common stock at a conversion price equal to 80% of lowest bid price of our
common stock on the date of conversion. As of December 31, 2012, the total principal outstanding on these notes was $213,200 and no further
notes are available for us to sell under this agreement.
We also agreed to issue to the investor up to twelve warrants to acquire shares of common stock, each such issuance to occur along with
each purchase of a January Note. Each warrant provides that the holder is initially entitled to purchase the number of shares of common stock
equal to 50% of the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion in full of the applicable January Note (based on initial fixed
conversion price equal to the three lowest closing sale prices of our common stock during the twenty trading day period preceding the issuance
of the particular January Note, with respect to each January Note, such term is referred to as the “Fixed Conversion Price”) at an initial exercise
price equal to the Fixed Conversion Price of the applicable January Note that is issued along with such warrant. Each of the warrants issued and
to be issued in connection with the January Notes was amended in April 2012 and are now subject to the April Warrant Amendments.
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With respect to the initial January Notes issued from January 3, 2012 through August 14, 2012, using the Fixed Conversion Price,
which means (after taking into account the reverse split we completed in March 2012) the minimum number of shares of common stock
underlying the initial January Note is 13,011,429 shares. As of December 31, 2012, the number of shares of common stock underlying the
warrants issued in connection with the initial January Notes are 205,000,000 shares and the exercise price of the warrants were $0.00088. We
cannot predict the Fixed Conversion Price for the January Notes and corresponding warrants at this time. In addition, we cannot predict if the
exercise price of the outstanding warrants will be lowered and the number of shares underlying the warrants will be increased due to antidilution protections in such warrants. As such, the total number of shares underlying all twelve January Notes and warrants is unknown.
On March 12, 2012, we entered into an agreement (the “March Agreement”) with two investors, pursuant to which we agreed to effect
an additional closing of notes identical to the January Notes in which we issued the buyers new notes having an aggregate original principal
amount of $550,000 for a purchase price of $500,000 (the “New Notes”), and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 2,619,048 shares of
common stock at an exercise price of $0.105 per share (the “New Warrants”). As of December 31, 2012, the outstanding principal balance on
these notes was $387,000.The New Notes and New Warrants have identical terms to the January Notes and Series A Warrants described
above. Each of the New Warrants issued was subject to the April Warrant Amendments, provided that in addition to such amendments, the
New Warrants were amended to state that a portion of the New Warrants would be callable by us upon if the daily volume of our common stock
was two million shares or greater for five consecutive trading days. As of December 31, 2012, the number of shares of common stock
underlying the warrants issued in connection with the March Agreement were 221,250,000 shares and the exercise price of the warrant was
$0.00088. We cannot predict the Fixed Conversion Price for this note and corresponding warrants at this time. As such, the total number of
shares underlying the March Agreement is unknown.
On September 27, 2012, we entered into a letter agreement with two institutional investor (collectively, the “Investors”) pursuant to
which the Company agreed to exchange 452,640 shares of common stock of Vringo, Inc. and warrants to purchase an additional 186,408
shares of common stock at $1.76 per share for the forgiveness and extinguishment of $881,760 of convertible debt and the repurchase by the
Company of warrants to purchase 1,191,823,000 shares of common stock of the Company at $0.00088 per share. In addition, the Investors
agreed not to seek payment or to convert into shares of common stock the $600,200 of debt remaining outstanding until January 1, 2013 or until
the price of our common stock is $0.05 per share. The principal balances that remain on the January 3 and March 12, 2012 notes described
above and shares underlying the outstanding warrants are after giving effect to the September 27, 2012 transaction detailed in this paragraph.
On February 5, 2013, we entered into a letter agreement with two institutional investors, which amended the Company’s existing
Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2012, by and between the Company and one of the institutional investors to provide for
an additional closing pursuant to which the investors agreed to purchase an aggregate original principal amount of $374,000 of additional senior
secured convertible notes and additional warrants to purchase an aggregate of 155,833,332 shares of our common stock. The warrants have an
initial exercise price of $.0012 and expire on January 31, 2018.
Trends and Uncertainties Affecting our Operations
We will be subject to a number of factors that may affect our operations and financial performance. These factors include, but are not
limited to, the available supply and price of organic food waste, the market for liquid and solid organic fertilizer, increasing energy costs, the
unpredictable cost of compliance with environmental and other government regulation, and the time and cost of obtaining USDA, state or other
product labeling designations. Demand for organic fertilizer and the resulting prices customers are willing to pay also may not be as high as our
market studies suggest. In addition, supply of organic fertilizer products from the use of other technologies or other competitors may adversely
affect our selling prices and consequently our overall profitability. In addition, our strategy includes finding a merger partner and there is no
assurance that we will be successful in that effort.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
At December 31, 2012, we had total current assets of approximately $443,000, consisting primarily of cash, accounts receivable and
fertilizer inventory, and had current liabilities of approximately $2.9 million, consisting primarily of term and convertible notes payable,
accounts payable, liabilities from discontinued operations and derivative liabilities, leaving us with negative working capital of approximately
$2.5 million. Non-current assets totaled approximately $2.2 million and consisted primarily of property and equipment and intangible assets. We
have an accumulated deficit at December 31, 2012 of approximately $116 million. We had a stockholders’ deficit at December 31, 2012 of
approximately $948,000. For the year ended December 31, 2012, we generated revenues from continuing operations of approximately $1.5
million as compared to revenue from continuing operations of approximately $2.8 million for the same period in 2011. A full discussion of the
variance in revenue is included in the results of operations section below.
Although the Organic Fertilizer business was cash flow positive in the first six months of 2012 it had negative cash flow of $162,000 in
the last six month of 2012 and we expect to have negative cash flow in the quarter ended March 31, 2013, and therefore we do not expect that it
will generate any cash to fund the corporate overhead, even though we have greatly reduced such overhead from 2011 levels.
Presently, our liquidity is limited to our cash on hand at December 31, 2012 of approximately $175,000. Currently, all of our warrant
issuances are in the money, however, our stock price has been less than $.01 per share and, therefore, we do not expect to raise any significant
funds due to the exercise of warrants.
Discontinued Operations in the Statement of Cash Flows
Cash flows from discontinued operations are presented with cash flows from continuing operations in the statement of cash
flows. Cash flows provided by operations related to discontinued operations were $147,159 for the year ending December 31, 2012. These
cash flows from operations primarily related to the loss on investment in discontinued operations, asset impairment, intangible asset
amortization and an increase in accounts payable offset by uses of cash from operations related to the net loss from discontinued
operations. Cash flows from discontinued operations are not expected to have a significant impact on future liquidity and capital resources.
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On February 5, 2013 we sold an additional $374,000 of convertible notes and we plan to use the proceeds to complete our public
company filings and operate until March 31, 2013, while we continue to seek a merger partner. There is no guarantee that we will complete such
a merger by that date.
If we do not receive additional funds in excess of the amount of cash on hand, whether as a result of the exercise of the warrants issued
or the sale of convertible notes, or otherwise, we will not be able to continue our operations once the cash on hand is utilized, which we estimate
to be March 31, 2013. Even in the event that we do receive additional funds, there is no guarantee that such funds will be sufficient to continue
operations until we achieve our plan. At this time, we do not have any commitments for additional financing, and there is no assurance that
capital in any form will be available to us on terms and conditions that are acceptable or at all.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Our plan of operation is based in part upon the Company’s consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The preparation of financial statements in accordance
with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, including the
recoverability of tangible and intangible assets, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial
statements, and the reported amounts of expenses during the periods covered.
We evaluate our estimates on an on-going basis. The most significant estimates relate to the recovery of long-lived intangible assets, the
fair value of financial instruments related to equity and debt transactions and estimations of valuation allowances. We base our estimates on
historical Company and industry experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Estimates and judgments used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements are, by their nature, uncertain and
unpredictable, and depend upon, among other things, many factors outside of our control, such as the results of our operations and other
economic conditions. Accordingly, our estimates and judgments may prove to be incorrect and actual results may differ, perhaps significantly,
from these estimates under different estimates, assumptions or conditions.
The following is a brief discussion of our critical accounting policies and methods, and the judgments and estimates used by us in their
application:
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized when (i) persuasive evidence of a sales arrangement exists, (ii) delivery of the product or service has occurred,
(iii) the sales price is fixed or determinable, and (iv) collectability is reasonably assured.
The Company’s organic fertilizer operation generates revenues from two sources: product sales and tip fees. Product sales revenue
comes from the sale of fertilizer products. Tip fee revenue is derived from waste haulers who pay the Company “tip” fees for accepting food
waste generated by food distributors such as grocery stores, produce docks and fish markets, food processors and hospitality venues such as
hotels, restaurants, convention centers and airports.
Share-Based Compensation
We account for equity instruments exchanged for services in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Section 718 Compensation — Stock Compensation (ASC 718) regarding share-based
compensation. Under the provisions of ASC 718, share-based compensation issued to employees is measured at the grant date, based on the
fair value of the award, and is recognized as an expense over the requisite service period (generally the vesting period of the grant). Share-based
compensation issued to non-employees is measured at grant date, based on the fair value of the consideration received or the fair value of the
equity instruments issued, whichever is more readily measurable, and is recognized as an expense over the requisite service period.
Long-Lived Assets
We account for our long-lived assets (excluding goodwill) in accordance with ASC Section 360 Property, Plant and Equipment (ASC
360), which requires that long-lived assets and certain intangible assets be reviewed for impairment annually and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, such as technological changes or significantly increased competition. If
undiscounted expected future cash flows are less than the carrying value of the assets, an impairment loss is to be recognized based on the fair
value of the assets, calculated using an undiscounted cash flow model. There is inherent subjectivity and judgments involved in cash flow
analyses such as estimating revenue and cost growth rates, residual or terminal values and discount rates, which can have a significant impact on
the amount of any impairment.
Derivative Instruments
We account for derivative instruments in accordance with ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815), which establishes accounting
and reporting standards for derivative instruments and hedging activities, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other financial
instruments or contracts and requires recognition of all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. Accounting for changes in the fair value of
derivative instruments depends on whether the derivatives qualify as hedge relationships and the types of relationships designated are based on
the exposures hedged. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we did not have any derivative instruments that were designated as hedges.
Discontinued Operations
We discontinued the operations of our Woodbridge, NJ facility during the third quarter of 2010 and our Industrial Wastewater Treatment
and Vertical Farming segments in 2012. Assets and liabilities related to these businesses have been classified as discontinued operations on the

and Vertical Farming segments in 2012. Assets and liabilities related to these businesses have been classified as discontinued operations on the
consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2012 and 2011 and their operations have been classified as loss from discontinued operations on
the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.
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Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. Therefore, a fair value measurement should be determined
based on the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements (ASC 820) establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes
between market participant assumptions based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that
are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions
(unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy):
• Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that we have the ability to access.
• Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly. Level 2 inputs may include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, as well as inputs that are
observable for the asset or liability (other than quoted prices), such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and yield curves that are
observable at commonly quoted intervals.
• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability which are typically based on an entity’s own assumptions, as there is
little, if any, related market activity.
In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the
level in the fair value hierarchy within which the entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement in its entirety. Our assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety
requires judgment, and considers factors specific to the asset or liability.
Income Taxes
We consider the valuation allowance for our deferred tax assets to be a significant accounting estimate. In applying ASC 740 Income
Taxes (ASC 740), management estimates future taxable income from operations and tax planning strategies in determining if it is more likely
than not that we will realize the benefits of our deferred tax assets. Management believes the Company does not have any uncertain tax
positions.
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2011-04 Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820) —
Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs (ASU No. 2011-04)
which will supersede most of the accounting guidance currently found in Topic 820 of FASB’s ASC. The amendments will improve
comparability of fair value measurements presented and disclosed in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The amendments also clarify the application of existing fair value measurement requirements. These
amendments include (1) the application of the highest and best use and valuation premise concepts, (2) measuring the fair value of an instrument
classified in a reporting entity’s shareholders’ equity and (3) disclosing quantitative information about the unobservable inputs used within the
Level 3 hierarchy. The guidance is effective for the Company’s interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011 and will be
applied prospectively. We have evaluated this new ASU and have determined that it will not have a significant impact on the determination or
reporting of our financial statements.
In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220) — Presentation of Comprehensive Income
(ASU No. 2011-05) which eliminates the option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of
stockholders’ equity. The amendments require that all non-owner changes in stockholders’ equity must be presented in a single continuous
statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. Regardless of whether an entity chooses to present
comprehensive income in a single continuous statement or in two separate but consecutive statements the entity is required to present on the face
of the consolidated financial statements reclassification adjustments for items that are reclassified from other comprehensive income to net
income in the statement(s) where the components of net income and the components of other comprehensive income are presented. The
guidance is effective for the Company’s interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011 and will be applied prospectively. We
have evaluated this new ASU and have determined that it will not have a significant impact on the determination or reporting of our financial
statements.
In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-08, Testing Goodwill for Impairment (ASU No. 2011-08). The provisions of
ASU No. 2011-08 permits an entity an option to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that the
fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If an entity believes, as a result of its qualitative assessment, that it is more likely
than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, the quantitative impairment test is required. Otherwise, no further
impairment testing is required. ASU No. 2011-08 includes examples of events and circumstances that may indicate that a reporting unit’s fair
value is less than its carrying amount. The provisions of ASU No. 2011-08 are effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests
performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011. Early adoption is permitted provided that the entity has not yet performed its
annual impairment test for goodwill. We have evaluated this new ASU and have determined that it will not have a significant impact on the
determination or reporting of our financial statements.
In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-12, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of the Effective Date for
Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassification of Items out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (AOCI) in Accounting
Standards update No. 2011-05, which deferred the effective date for the amendments to the reclassification of items out of AOCI. The
guidance, with the exception of reclassification adjustments, is effective on January 1, 2012 and must be applied retrospectively for all periods
presented. We have evaluated this new ASU and have determined that it will not have a significant impact on the determination or reporting of
our financial statements.

our financial statements.
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In July 2012, the FASB issued new guidance on the impairment testing of indefinite-lived intangible assets (ASU 2012-02, Intangibles
—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment), effective for calendar years beginning after
September 15, 2012. Early adoption is permitted. The objective of the provisions in this ASU is to simplify how an entity tests indefinite-lived
intangible assets for impairment. The amendments in this standard will allow an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is
more likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the
quantitative impairment test. Only if an entity determines, based on qualitative assessment, that it is more likely than not that the indefinite-lived
intangible asset is impaired will it be required to determine the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible asset and perform the quantitative
impairment test. We have evaluated this new ASU and have determined that it will not have a significant impact on the determination or
reporting of our financial statements.
In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-01, Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about Offsetting
Assets and Liabilities, which clarifies that the scope of the intended disclosures required by ASU 2011-11 applies to derivatives accounted for
in accordance with Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, including bifurcated embedded derivatives, repurchase agreements and reverse
repurchase agreements, and securities borrowing and securities lending transactions that are either offset in accordance with Section 210-20-45
or Section 815-10-45 or subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement. ASU 2013-01 is effective for fiscal years,
and interim periods within those years, beginning on or after January 1, 2013. An entity is required to provide the disclosures retrospectively
for all comparative periods presented. We have evaluated this new ASU and have determined that it will not have a significant impact on the
determination or reporting of our financial statements.
In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, which requires disclosure of significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other
comprehensive income by component and their corresponding effect on the respective line items of net income. This guidance is effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012. We have evaluated this new ASU and have determined that it will not have a significant
impact on the determination or reporting of our financial statements.
Results of Operations
Summary of Comprehensive Loss from All Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2012 we reported a comprehensive loss of approximately $8,398,000 compared to $17,400,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2011. The major components of this loss are as follows:
2012
1,416,324
(9,841,469)
65,281
(38,225)
$ (8,398,089)

Income (Loss) from continuing operations
Income (Loss) from discontinued operations
Non-controlling interest
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Total comprehensive loss attributable to Converted Organics Inc.

$

2011
$ (11,075,091)
(6,905,768)
540,844
39,597
$ (17,400,418)

Results of Continuing Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2012, we had an after tax net profit from continuing operations of approximately $1,416,000 compared
to a loss of approximately $11,075,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011. The decrease in the net loss of approximately $12,491,000 is
made up of the following favorable and (unfavorable) major components, with further explanation and details following the table:
Decrease in sales
Decrease in cost of goods
Decrease in general and administrative expenses
Decrease in other income
Increase in gain on sale of investment
Increase in gain on debt extinguishment
Increase in loss on debt modification
Increase in gain on fair value of derivative liability
Decrease in interest expense
Total variance from continuing operations

$ (1,232,000)
751,000
4,060,000
(6,000)
975,000
1,205,000
(643,000)
3,330,000
4,051,000
$ 12,491,000
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For the year ended December 31, 2012, we had sales from continuing operations of approximately $1,522,000 compared to
approximately $2,754,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011. The $1,232,000 decrease is entirely related to a decrease in sales from our
Gonzales, CA facility (attributed to weather, customer volume and the discontinued sales of our fish based product).
For the year ended December 31, 2012, we had cost of goods sold from continuing operations of approximately $1,416,000 compared to
approximately $2,167,000 for the same period in 2011. The decrease in cost of goods sold of $751,000 is related to our Gonzales, CA facility
which reported lower sales in 2012.
Gross Profit from continuing operations was approximately $106,000 or 7% for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to
$587,000 or 21% for the year ended December 31, 2011. The decline in the gross profit percentage is due to lower sales combined with fixed
production costs.
We incurred general and administrative expenses of approximately $2,644,000 and approximately $6,704,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The approximately $4,060,000 decrease in general and administrative expenses is primarily due to a
reduction in compensation expense of approximately $2,200,000 related to the issuance of restricted common stock in 2011 (none were issued
in 2012) and reductions in consulting fees, professional fees, financing fees and salary expenses.
For the year ended December 31, 2012, we recognized a gain on the sale of investment of approximately $975,000 with no comparable
activity in 2011. This gain related to the exchange of the stock and warrants that we owned in VRINGO for the extinguishment of certain
convertible notes and the repurchase of certain of our warrants. The gain was calculated by deducting the cost of the investment from the fair
value of the investment on the date of exchange. In addition to the gain recognized on the exchange of stock and warrants, we recognized a
further gain on debt extinguishment for the year ended December 31, 2012 of approximately $1,205,000. This gain was calculated by deducting
the fair value of the stock and warrants exchanged from the face value of the debt and fair value of the warrants extinguished.
For the year ended December 31, 2012, we had a loss on debt modification of approximately $3,000,000 compared to approximately
$2,357,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011. This unfavorable variance of approximately $643,000 is a non-cash loss and is related to the
valuation of certain derivative features included in certain of our warrants and convertible debt obligations, which is calculated upon any
modification to existing debt agreements.
For the year ended December 31, 2012, we recognized derivative gains of approximately $9,154,000 compared to derivative gains of
approximately $5,824,000 for 2011 due to the mark-to-market adjustments of certain financial instruments and additional instruments being
issued. This favorable variance of approximately $3,330,000 is a non-cash item and did not contribute cash to our operations.
Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was approximately $4,125,000 and $8,176,000, respectively. Interest
expense in 2012 was associated with various notes held by the Company of approximately $242,000 and non-cash interest expense of
approximately $3,883,000 associated with derivative elements contained in our convertible debt, while the components of interest expense in
2011 was associated with various notes held by the Company of approximately $400,000 and a non cash interest expense of approximately
$7.8 million associated with the derivative elements contained in our convertible debt. Interest expense associated with derivative elements is
non-cash in nature.
As of December 31, 2012, we had current assets of approximately $443,000 compared to approximately $637,000 as of December 31,
2011. Our total assets were approximately $2,647,000 as of December 31, 2012 compared to approximately $6,881,000 as of December 31,
2011. Current assets decreased in all classifications; however, the majority of the decrease year over year was due to a decrease in cash used to
operate the business. A majority of the decrease in long term assets in 2012 was represented by the sale of assets associated with our Vertical
Farming segment.
As of December 31, 2012, we had current liabilities of approximately $2,967,000 compared to approximately $11,109,000 at
December 31, 2011. This decrease of approximately $8,142,000 is due largely to a decrease in convertible notes payable and derivative
liabilities. In addition, long-term liabilities as of December 31, 2012 of approximately $629,000 as compared to $0 at December 31, 2011. The
increase is due to an increase in the long-term portion of derivative liabilities.
For the year ended December 31, 2012 we had negative cash flows from operating activities of approximately $1,398,000, comprised of
loss from operations of approximately $8,425,000 adjusted for certain non-cash items such as depreciation and amortization, non-cash interest
expense associated with the issuance of convertible debt, the write-down of impaired assets, amortization of deferred financing fees, an early
termination lease penalty and an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses. We also had negative cash flows from investing activities
of approximately $502,000, primarily related to purchase of other assets. The negative cash flows from both operating and investing activities
was offset by approximately $1,860,000 in positive cash flows from financing activities comprised of proceeds from our various convertible
debt transactions. The result of the above activities decreased our cash position by approximately $80,000 for the year ended December 31,
2012.
For the year ended December 31, 2011 we had negative cash flows from operating activities of approximately $5,720,000, comprised of
loss from operations of approximately $14,670,000 adjusted for certain non-cash items such as depreciation and amortization, non-cash interest
expense associated with the issuance of convertible debt, the write-down of impaired assets, amortization of deferred financing fees, an early
termination lease penalty and an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses. We also had negative cash flows from investing activities
of approximately $1,230,000, primarily related to purchase of fixed assets at our IWR operation in Colorado. The negative cash flows from
both operating and investing activities was offset by approximately $4,120,000 in positive cash flows from financing activities comprised of
proceeds from our various convertible debt transactions. The result of the above activities decreased our cash position by approximately
$2,790,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Results of Discontinued Operations
On December 7, 2012, the Company entered into a Purchase and Sale of Business Agreement with RI Vertical Farm Partners, LLC ("RI
Vertical"), whereby the Company transferred its ownership of its wholly-owned subsidiary, TerraSphere Inc. and the subsidiaries of
TerraSphere Inc. to RI Vertical for consideration of $5.00. Under the Agreement, RI Vertical receives all of the assets of TerraSphere Inc. and
its subsidiaries and assumes all of the liabilities of TerraSphere Inc. and its subsidiaries. As a result of the TerraSphere Inc. sale, the Company
has presented its Vertical Farming segment as discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
On September 17, 2012, the Company entered into an agreement with Heartland Technology Partners (“HTP”) whereby the Company
and HTP agreed to resolve a dispute relating to the Supply and License Agreement that both parties entered into on March 23, 2010. The
Supply and License Agreement governed certain Industrial Wastewater technology owned by HTP that was licensed to the Company. In
exchange for $650,000 and the settlement of all disputes, the Company agreed to terminate the Supply and License Agreement dated March 23,
2010 and will no longer operate its Industrial Wastewater Treatment segment. The Company had recorded the value of the Supply and License
Agreement at $500,000 on its balance sheet and therefore recognized a $150,000 gain on the termination of the Supply and License Agreement
which is recorded in the Statements of Operations as discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2012.
In 2010, the Company discontinued operations at its facility in Woodbridge, NJ. The Company is actively working with vendors to
satisfy its liabilities outstanding at December 31, 2012. Income recognized from this discontinued operation is the result of favorable settlements
with certain of its creditors.
2011:

The following table summarizes the components of the loss from the discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2012
—

$

2011
397,937

Revenue from discontinued operations

$

Loss from discontinued operations
Loss on investment in discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations

$ (2,100,896) $ (6,905,768)
(7,740,573)
—
$ (9,841,469) $ (6,905,768)

The following table provides the assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations, in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31,
2012 and 2011:
2012
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Deposits and other non-current assets
Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Assets of discontinued operations

Notes payable – related party
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Obligation to issue shares
Deferred revenue
Liabilities of discontinued operations
Off-Balance Sheet Transactions
We do not engage in material off-balance sheet transactions.
ITEM 7A.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not applicable.
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2011
14,098
505,852
132,325
2,969,000

$

—
—
—
—

$

$

—

$

3,621,275

$

—
514,064
—
—
—

$

72,351
1,217,087
27,953
9,127
95,000

$

514,064

$

1,421,518

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
CONVERTED ORGANICS INC.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Converted Organics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Boston, Massachusetts
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Converted Organics, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the "Company") as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, changes in stockholders' equity
(deficit) and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over
financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Converted Organics, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the
years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that Converted Organics, Inc. and Subsidiaries will
continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring losses and
negative cash flows from operations and has an accumulated deficit that raises substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going
concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 2. The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/s/ Moody, Famiglietti & Andronico, LLP
Tewksbury, Massachusetts
3/15/2013
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CONVERTED ORGANICS INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
2012
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Deferred financing costs, net
Assets of discontinued operations, current portion
Total current assets

$

Deposits and other non-current assets
Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Assets of discontinued operations, net of current portion
Total assets

$

2011

175,876
34,307
183,217
49,705
—
—
443,105
23,136
1,049,571
1,131,596
—
2,647,408

$

$

254,783
27,762
274,391
41,024
24,642
14,098
636,700
29,181
1,188,328
1,419,604
3,607,177
6,880,990

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Convertible notes payable, net of unamortized discount
Derivative liabilities, current portion
Liabilities of discontinued operations
Total current liabilities

$

Derivative liabilities, net of current portion
Total liabilities

887,862
486,620
600,200
478,146
514,064
2,966,892

Non-controlling interests
Total stockholders' deficit
Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit

—
11,109,427

—

—

13,281,000

13,281,000

53,683
21
101,622,642
97,700,326
(115,905,651) (115,033,963)
—
30,866
(948,326)
(4,021,750)
—
(206,687)
(948,326)
(4,228,437)
$ 2,647,408 $ 6,880,990

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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675,252
547,768
2,157,808
6,307,081
1,421,518
11,109,427

628,842
3,595,734

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
Preferred stock, $.0001 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized;
13,281 ($1,000 stated value) shares issued and outstanding
Common stock, $.0001 par value, 1,000,000,000 and 500,000,000 shares authorized;
536,836,281 and 208,890 shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive income

$

CONVERTED ORGANICS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
2012
Revenues

$

Cost of goods sold

1,521,953

Loss from continuing operations
Other income (expenses)
Other income
Gain on sale of investment
Gain on debt extinguishment
Gain on change in fair value of derivative liability
Loss on debt modification
Interest expense
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
provision for income taxes

$

2,167,437

106,225

586,769

2,643,818
288,008
2,931,826

6,703,796
288,008
6,991,804

(2,825,601)

(6,405,035)

33,272
974,515
1,204,711
9,154,173
(3,000,205)
(4,124,541)
4,241,925

39,203
—
—
5,823,629
(2,357,322)
(8,175,566)
(4,670,056)

1,416,324

(11,075,091)

Provision for income taxes

—

Net income (loss) from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Net loss

(11,075,091)
(6,905,768)

(8,425,145)

(17,980,859)

57,922
(8,367,223)

Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Foreign currency translation adjustment

(38,225)

Comprehensive loss

(8,405,448)

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interest
Comprehensive loss attributable to Converted Organics Inc.

—

1,416,324
(9,841,469)

Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest
Net loss attributable to Converted Organics Inc.
before other comprehensive (loss) income

2,754,206

1,415,728

Gross profit
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Amortization of intangibles assets

2011

7,359

548,466
(17,432,393)
39,597
(17,392,796)
(7,622)

$ (8,398,089) $ (17,400,418)

Net earnings (loss) per share, basic and diluted
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

$

0.01 $
(0.04)
(0.03) $

$
Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic and diluted

256,693,233

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(279.70)
(174.40)
(454.10)
39,597

CONVERTED ORGANICS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
Preferred Stock Series A
Shares
Issued
an
Outstanding
Amount

Common Stock
Shares
Issued
and
Outstanding Amount

Accumulated
Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Other
Comprehensive
Loss (Income)

Balance,
December 31,
2010 (As
Restated)
17,500 $ 17,500,000
17,094 $
2 $ 81,649,927 $ (97,601,570) $
Common
stock issued
to settle
convertible
notes
obligations
—
—
187,581
19
8,174,810
—
Common
stock issued
as
compensation
—
—
1,013
—*
1,557,825
—
Issuance of
employee
stock options
—
—
—
—
669,444
—
Issuance of
common stock
as payment of
accounts
payable
—
—
1,009
—*
85,320
—
Issuance of common stock
as payment to settle
obligations
of
discontinued
operations
—
—
640
—*
1,344,000
—
Issuance of
common stock
for conversion
of preferred
stock
(4,219) (4,219,000)
1,554
—*
4,219,000
—
Foreign
currency
translation
adjustment
—
—
—
—
—
—
Net loss
—
—
—
—
—
(17,432,393)
Balance,
December 31,
2011
13,281 13,281,000
208,890
21
97,700,326 (115,033,963)
Common
stock issued
to settle
convertible
notes
obligations
—
— 536,627,391
53,662
3,922,316
—
Foreign
currency
translation
adjustment
—
—
—
—
—
—
Sale of
discontinued
operations
—
—
—
—
—
7,495,535
Net loss
—
—
—
—
—
(8,367,223)
Balance,
December 31,
2012
13,281 $ 13,281,000 536,836,281 $ 53,683 $ 101,622,642 $ (115,905,651) $

Total
NonControlling
Interests

Total

(1,109) $ 1,547,250 $

334,157 $

1,881,407

—

8,174,829

—

8,174,829

—

1,557,825

—

1,557,825

—

669,444

—

669,444

—

85,320

—

85,320

—

1,344,000

—

1,344,000

—

—

—

—

31,975
—

31,975
(17,432,393)

7,622
(548,466)

39,597
(17,980,859)

30,866

(4,021,750)

(206,687)

(4,228,437)

—

(30,866)
—
—
— $

3,975,978

—

3,975,978

(30,866)

(7,359)

(38,225)

7,495,535
(8,367,223)

271,968
(57,922)

7,767,503
(8,425,145)

(948,326) $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Stockholders'
Equity
(Deficit)

— $

(948,326)

CONVERTED ORGANICS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31,
2012
2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Amortization expense of intangible assets and other assets
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment
Amortization of discounts on notes payable
Interest expense in relation to issuance of convertible debt
Common stock issued as compensation
Common stock issued as payment of expenses
Stock option compensation expense
Gain on sale of investment
Gain on change in fair value of obligations to issue shares
Gain on settlement of debt
Gain on debt extinguishment
Loss on debt modification
Gain on settlement of accounts payable
Goodwill impairment
Impairment of intangible assets
Loss on abandonment of asset
Loss on write-down of construction costs
Gain on change in fair value of derivative liability
Loss on investment in discontinued operations
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deposits and other non-current assets
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Net cash used in operating activities

$ (8,425,145)

$ (17,980,859)

581,851
150,454
2,811,999
1,289,074
—
—
—
(974,515)
(9,127)
—
(1,204,711)
3,000,205
—
—
1,774,921
123,101
—
(9,154,173)
7,740,573

1,199,182
288,506
7,904,807
268,486
1,557,825
85,320
669,444
—
(640,593)
(225,000)
—
2,357,322
(402,183)
1,186,784
3,563,168
951,668
113,543
(5,823,629)
—

(6,545)
91,174
(7,973)
525,542

296,684
(147,985)
197,071
40,527

350,673
(56,167)
—
(1,398,789)

(965,391)
(308,506)
95,000
(5,718,809)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment
Cash received in sale of discontinued operations
Cash provided in sale of discontinued operations
Patent costs
Purchase of other assets
Net cash used in investing activities

—
6
(669)
(6,594)
(495,000)
(502,257)

(1,199,596)
—
—
(28,683)
—
(1,228,279)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of debt obligations
Deferred financing costs for short-term notes
Net proceeds from short-term notes
Net cash provided by financing activities

—
(85,000)
1,945,400
1,860,400

(125,000)
(255,000)
4,500,000
4,120,000

Net effect of exchange rate changes on cash

(38,261)

NET DECREASE IN CASH

41,930

(78,907)

(2,785,158)

Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

$

254,783
175,876

$

3,039,941
254,783

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest

$

36,989

$

28,402

Non-cash financing activities:

Non-cash financing activities:
Common stock issued to settle convertible notes obligations
Fair value of derivatives issued in conjunction with debt and equity financing
Discount on convertible note issued in connection with financings
Exchange of investment to reduce convertible notes obligations
Common stock issued as settlement of discontinued operations obligations
Common stock issued in connection with conversion of preferred stock

$

3,975,978
3,401,534
2,112,461
881,760
—
—

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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$

8,174,829
4,667,269
—
—
1,344,000
4,219,000

CONVERTED ORGANICS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS
Converted Organics Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Company”) utilize innovative clean technologies to establish
environmentally friendly businesses. The Company is dedicated to creating a cleaner, greener future, and operates using sustainable business
practices that support this vision. During the first three quarters of 2012 and all of 2011, the Company had three business segments: Organic
Fertilizer, Industrial Wastewater Treatment and Vertical Farming. However, on September 17, 2012, the Company terminated its Industrial
Wastewater Supply and License Agreement, and on December 7, 2012, the Company sold its Vertical Farming segment. Therefore, as of
December 31, 2012, the Company no longer operates these two business segments and only operates its organic fertilizer processing facility
that converts food waste and other raw materials into all-natural fertilizers, biostimulants, and soil amendment products. The Company has
reported the results of operations from the Industrial Wastewater Treatment ("IWR") and Vertical Farming segments as discontinued operations
within the consolidated financial statements.
A summary of the subsidiaries that comprise the Company at December 31, 2012 are as follows:
Converted Organics of California, LLC (the “Gonzales, CA facility”) is a California limited liability company and wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The Gonzales, CA facility operates a plant in Gonzales, CA, in the Salinas Valley and produces liquid organic
fertilizer products, which are sold primarily to the California agricultural market. The Gonzales, CA facility employs a proprietary method called
High Temperature Liquid Composting (HTLC). The facility has been upgraded to enable it to accept larger amounts of food waste from waste
haulers and may be upgraded, depending on demand, to have the capability to produce a dry product in addition to the current liquid fertilizer it
produces. The operations of the Gonzales, CA facility are part of the organic fertilizer business segment.
Converted Organics of Woodbridge, LLC is a New Jersey limited liability company and wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
which was formed for the purpose of owning, constructing and operating the Company’s facility in Woodbridge, NJ (the “Woodbridge, NJ
facility”). The Woodbridge, NJ facility was designed to service the New York-Northern New Jersey metropolitan area. During 2010, the
Company discontinued operations at the Woodbridge, NJ facility. The Company has reported the results of operations of Converted Organics
of Woodbridge, LLC as discontinued operations within the consolidated financial statements. The operations of the Woodbridge, NJ facility are
part of the organic fertilizer business segment.
On January 26, 2010, the Company formed Converted Organics of Mississippi, LLC, a Mississippi limited liability company and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, for the purpose of hiring a sales force and adding a poultry litter-based fertilizer product to the
Company’s existing product lines. The Company has not had any operating activity in this subsidiary since inception.
The business activities associated with the Company’s Industrial Wastewater Treatment facility in Colorado, which were included in the
Industrial Wastewater Treatment segment, are recorded on the books of the parent company, Converted Organics Inc., and not in a separate
subsidiary. On January 30, 2012, the Company announced that it had defaulted on its agreement with South Canyon Waste Systems and
therefore had no revenue for the year ended December 31, 2012. As the Company terminated its license to operate this business, the Company
no longer expects any operating activity to be recorded in the books of Converted Organics Inc. The Company has reported the Industrial
Wastewater Treatment segment results of operations as discontinued operations within the consolidated financial statements (see Note 16).
On May 20, 2010, the Company formed TerraSphere Inc. (“TerraSphere”), a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, for the purpose of acquiring the membership interests of TerraSphere Systems, LLC (“TerraSphere Systems”). On
November 12, 2010, TerraSphere acquired a 95% membership interest in TerraSphere Systems. TerraSphere Systems has two subsidiaries;
wholly owned PharmaSphere, LLC (“PharmaSphere”) and majority owned TerraSphere Systems of Canada, Inc. (“TerraSphere Canada”). On
December 4, 2012, TerraSphere acquired from the Company, RILLC and GoLocal. TerraSphere operations were part of the Vertical Farming
business segment. On December 7, 2012, the Company sold its Vertical Farming business segment and has reported the Vertical Farming
segment results of operations as discontinued operations within the consolidated financial statements (see Note 16).
On December 30, 2010, Converted Organics Inc. purchased a majority ownership interest of the vertical farming entity,
GoLocalProduceRI, LLC (“GoLocal”) located in Rhode Island. The Company did not have any material operating activity in this subsidiary
since inception. On December 4, 2012, the Company transferred its entire ownership of GoLocal to TerraSphere for consideration of $1.00.
Converted Organics of Rhode Island, LLC ("RILLC") was an inactive, 92.5% owned subsidiary of Converted Organics Inc. On
December 4, 2012, the Company transferred its entire ownership of RILLC to TerraSphere for consideration of $1.00. RILLC had no assets or
liabilities.
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CONVERTED ORGANICS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
NOTE 2 — GOING CONCERN
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern.
As reflected in the consolidated financial statements, the Company has an accumulated deficit, has suffered significant net losses and negative
cash flows from operations, and has negative working capital, which raises substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result should the Company be unable to continue as a
going concern.
As reflected in the consolidated financial statements, the Company incurred a net loss of approximately $8.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012, and as of December 31, 2012 had an accumulated deficit of approximately $116.0 million and a working capital deficiency
of approximately $2.5 million.
Presently, the Company’s liquidity is limited to its cash on hand at December 31, 2012 of approximately $176,000. As of December 31,
2012 the Company’s warrant issuances are in the money, however, its stock price has been less than $.01 per share and, therefore, the
Company does not expect to raise any significant funds due to the exercise of warrants.
On February 5, 2013 the Company sold an additional $374,000 of convertible notes, the proceeds of which will be used to complete its
public company filings and operate until March 31, 2013, while the Company continues to seek a merger partner. There is no guarantee that the
Company will complete such a merger by that date.
If the Company does not receive additional funds in excess of the amount of cash on hand, whether as a result of the exercise of the
warrants issued or the issuance of further convertible notes, or otherwise, the Company will not be able to continue its operations once the cash
on hand is utilized, which the Company estimates to be March 31, 2013. Even in the event that the Company does receive additional funds,
there is no guarantee that such funds will be sufficient to continue operations until the Company achieves its plan. At this time, The Company
does not have any commitments for additional financing, and there is no assurance that capital in any form will be available to it on terms and
conditions that are acceptable or at all.
NOTE 3 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012 include the balances of Converted
Organics Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Converted Organics of California, LLC (“California”), Converted Organics of Woodbridge,
LLC (“Woodbridge”) and Converted Organics of Mississippi, LLC (“Mississippi”). The accompanying consolidated financial statements as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2011 include the balances of Converted Organics Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Converted
Organics of California, LLC (“California”), Converted Organics of Woodbridge, LLC (“Woodbridge”), Converted Organics of Mississippi,
LLC (“Mississippi”) and its majority-owned subsidiaries Converted Organics of Rhode Island, LLC, TerraSphere Inc. (“TerraSphere”) and
GoLocalProduceRI, LLC (“Go Local”). The minority-owned interest in its subsidiaries is included in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements as non-controlling interest. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.
RECLASSIFICATIONS
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2011 consolidated financial statements in order to conform to the current year
presentation.
USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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CONVERTED ORGANICS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
NOTE 3 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
The Company applies Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (ASC 820), which
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. ASC 820 applies
to reported balances that are required or permitted to be measured at fair value under existing accounting pronouncements.
ASC 820 emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. Therefore, a fair value
measurement should be determined based on the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. As a basis for
considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements, ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between
market participant assumptions based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are
classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions
(unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy).
Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to
access. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly. Level 2 inputs may include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, as well as inputs that are observable for
the asset or liability (other than quoted prices), such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly
quoted intervals. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability which are typically based on an entity’s own assumptions, as
there is little, if any, related market activity. In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety which requires judgment, and considers factors specific to the asset or
liability.
FOREIGN OPERATIONS
The accounting records of TerraSphere Canada were maintained in Canadian dollars, its functional currency. Revenue and expense
transactions were translated to U.S. dollars using the average exchange rate of the month in which the transaction took place. Assets and
liabilities were translated to U.S. dollars using the exchange rate in effect as of the balance sheet date. Equity transactions were translated to
U.S. dollars using the exchange rate in effect as of the date of the equity transaction. Translation gains and losses are reported as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Gains and losses resulting from transactions which are denominated in other than functional
currencies are reported as foreign currency exchange gain or loss in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss in the
period the gain or loss occurred. All of the Company’s interest in TerraSphere Canada was sold on December 7, 2012.
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
The Company discontinued the operations of its Woodbridge, NJ facility during 2010 and its Industrial Wastewater Treatment and
Vertical Farming segments in 2012. Assets and liabilities related to these discontinued operations have been classified as discontinued
operations on the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and their operations have been classified as loss from
discontinued operations on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The Company defines cash and cash equivalents as highly liquid instruments with an original maturity of three months or less. The
Company had no cash equivalents at December 31, 2012 and 2011.
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable represents balances due from customers, net of applicable reserves for doubtful accounts. In determining the need
for an allowance, objective evidence that a single receivable is uncollectible, as well as historical collection patterns for accounts receivable are
considered at each balance sheet date. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, an allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately $0 and
$1,044,000 respectively, has been established, against certain receivables that management has identified as uncollectible. A charge of
approximately $0 and $14,000 is reflected in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, to provide for the reserves for doubtful accounts. Additionally, the Company had direct write-offs
of accounts receivable in the amounts of $0 and $78,764 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
INVENTORIES
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined by the first in, first out method. Inventories consist primarily
of raw materials and finished goods, which consist of soil amendment products. Inventory balances are presented net of applicable reserves.
There were no inventory reserves at December 31, 2012 or 2011.
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years
for machinery and equipment, office equipment and furniture and vehicles and 7 to 20 years for building and improvements.
DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS
In connection with its various private financings, the Company incurs professional fees which are capitalized and are being amortized
over the term of the related loans. Amortization of deferred financing costs, which is recognized in operating expenses, is associated with
private financings totaled $109,642 and $507,025 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
GOODWILL
The Company evaluates the carrying value of goodwill in accordance with ASC 350 Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (ASC 350),
during the fourth quarter of each year and when events occur or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of
the reporting unit below its carrying amount. Such circumstances could include, but are not limited to (1) a significant adverse change in legal
factors or in business climate, (2) unanticipated competition, or (3) an adverse action or assessment by a regulator. When evaluating whether
goodwill is impaired, the Company compares the fair value of the reporting unit to which the goodwill is assigned to the reporting unit’s
carrying amount, including goodwill. The fair value of the reporting unit is estimated using a combination of the income or discounted cash
flows approach and the market approach, which utilizes comparable companies’ data. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair
value, then the amount of the impairment loss must be measured. The impairment loss is calculated by comparing the implied fair value of
reporting unit goodwill to its carrying amount. In calculating the implied fair value of reporting unit goodwill, the fair value of the reporting unit
is allocated to all of the other assets and liabilities of that unit based on their fair values. The excess of the fair value of a reporting unit over the
amount assigned to its other assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill. An impairment loss would be recognized when the
carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company recorded a goodwill
impairment charge of approximately $1,187,000 which is included in the loss from discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive loss reflecting the impairment of all of the goodwill resulting from the Company’s acquisitions of TerraSphere
and GoLocal during the fourth quarter of 2010.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The Company accounts for its intangible assets in accordance with ASC 350 Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (ASC 350), which
requires that intangible assets with finite lives, such as the Company’s licenses and patents, be capitalized and amortized over their respective
estimated lives and reviewed for impairment whenever events or other changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized and are subject to annual impairment testing. This testing
compares carrying values to fair values and when appropriate, the carrying value of these assets is reduced to fair value. For the year ended
December 31, 2011, the Company recorded an impairment charge of approximately $3,563,000 which is included in the loss from discontinued
operations in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss reflecting the impairment of reacquired license rights fair value
associated with its acquisition of GoLocal and the fair value of the patents acquired with the TerraSphere acquisition. As of December 31,
2012, the Company performed its annual tests of the impairment of finite life intangible assets and determined that no impairment was
required. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company terminated its Industrial Wastewater Supply and License Agreement and
sold its Vertical Farming segment and therefore the only remaining intangibles assets as of December 31, 2012 are associated with the Organic
Fertilizer segment.
LONG-LIVED ASSETS
Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable in accordance with ASC 360 Property, Plant and Equipment (ASC 360). Such reviews are based on a comparison of
the asset’s undiscounted cash flows to the recorded carrying value of the asset. If the asset’s recorded carrying value exceeds the sum of the
undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset, the asset is written down to its estimated fair
value. Impairment charges, if any, are recorded in the period in which the impairment is determined.
CONVERTIBLE DEBT
The Company accounts for its convertible debt by recognizing discounts for the intrinsic value of beneficial conversion features, if
applicable, and discounts for the relative fair value of any warrants issued in conjunction with the debt. Discounts are amortized using the
effective interest rate method as noncash charges to interest expense over the related term of the debt.
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DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
The Company accounts for derivative instruments in accordance with ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815), which establishes
accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and hedging activities, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
financial instruments or contracts and requires recognition of all derivatives on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value. Accounting for
changes in the fair value of derivative instruments depends on whether the derivatives qualify as hedge relationships and the types of
relationships designated are based on the exposures hedged. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company did not have any derivative
instruments that were designated as hedges.
NONCONTROLLING INTEREST
The noncontrolling interest in variable interest entity included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets reflects the noncontrolling
party’s equity interest in the Subsidiary. Noncontrolling interest in variable interest entity in the consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive loss represent the results of operations from the subsidiaries. On December 7, 2012, the Company sold its Vertical Farming
segment and as of December 31, 2012 has no further noncontrolling interest.
REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is recognized in accordance with ASC 605 Revenue Recognition (ASC 605) when (i) persuasive evidence of a sales
arrangement exists, (ii) delivery of the product or service has occurred, (iii) the sales price is fixed or determinable, and (iv) collectability is
reasonably assured. Revenue terms are FOB shipping point.
The Company’s Organic Fertilizer operation generates revenues from two sources: product sales and tip fees. Product sales revenue
comes from the sale of fertilizer products. Tip fee revenue is derived from waste haulers who pay the Company “tip” fees for accepting food
waste generated by food distributors such as grocery stores, produce docks and fish markets, food processors and hospitality venues such as
hotels, restaurants, convention centers and airports.
SHIPPING AND HANDLING COSTS
The Company records freight billed to customers for shipment of product as revenue with an offsetting charge to cost of goods sold for
freight paid on shipments to customers.
SHARE BASED COMPENSATION
The Company accounts for share based compensation paid to employees in accordance with ASC 718 Compensation — Stock
Compensations (ASC 718). Under ASC 718 guidance, share-based compensation issued to employees is measured at the grant date, based on
the fair value of the award, and is recognized as an expense over the requisite service period (generally the vesting period of the grant). The
Company accounts for share based compensation issued to non-employees in accordance with ASC 505 Equity (ASC 505). Under ASC 505
guidance, such compensation is measured at the grant date, based on the consideration received or the fair value of the equity instruments issued
and is recognized as an expense over the requisite service period.
INCOME TAXES
The Company accounts for income taxes following the asset and liability method in accordance with ASC 740 Income Taxes (ASC 740).
Under such method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years that the asset is expected to be recovered or the liability settled.
The provisions of ASC 740 address the determination of whether tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return should be
recorded in the financial statements. Under ASC 740, the Company may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is
more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position.
The Company has determined that it has no significant uncertain tax positions.
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EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
Basic earnings (loss) per share (EPS) is computed by dividing the net income (loss) attributable to the common stockholders (the
numerator) by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding (the denominator) during the reporting periods. Diluted
income (loss) per share is computed by increasing the denominator by the weighted average number of additional shares that could have been
outstanding from securities convertible into common stock, such as stock options and warrants (using the “treasury stock” method), and
convertible preferred stock and debt (using the “if-converted” method), unless their effect on net income (loss) per share is antidilutive. Under
the “if-converted” method, convertible instruments are assumed to have been converted as of the beginning of the period or when issued, if
later. The effect of computing the Company’s diluted income (loss) per share was antidilutive and, as such, basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
share are the same for each of the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.
RECENTLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
In July 2012, the FASB issued Accounting Standard Update 2012-02, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testing IndefiniteLived Intangible Assets for Impairment (“ASU 2012-02”). The intent of ASU 2012-02 is to simplify how registrants test indefinite-lived
intangible asset for impairment and to improve consistency in impairment testing guidance among long-lived asset categories. ASU 2012-02
permits registrants to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is
impaired as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the quantitative impairment test in accordance with U.S. GAAP. An
entity will have an option not to calculate annually the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset if the entity determines that it is not more
likely than not that the asset is impaired. ASU 2012-02 is effective for annual and interim indefinite lived intangible asset impairment tests
performed for years beginning after September 15, 2012. Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of this update will not have a material effect
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-01, Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about Offsetting
Assets and Liabilities, which clarifies that the scope of the intended disclosures required by ASU 2011-11 applies to derivatives accounted for
in accordance with Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, including bifurcated embedded derivatives, repurchase agreements and reverse
repurchase agreements, and securities borrowing and securities lending transactions that are either offset in accordance with Section 210-20-45
or Section 815-10-45 or subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement. ASU 2013-01 is effective for fiscal years,
and interim periods within those years, beginning on or after January 1, 2013. An entity is required to provide the disclosures retrospectively
for all comparative periods presented. We have evaluated this new ASU and have determined that it will not have a significant impact on the
determination or reporting of our financial statements.
In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, which requires disclosure of significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other
comprehensive income by component and their corresponding effect on the respective line items of net income. This guidance is effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012. We have evaluated this new ASU and have determined that it will not have a significant
impact on the determination or reporting of our financial statements.
NOTE 4 — INVESTMENTS
On March 12, 2012, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement”), pursuant
to which the Company acquired 150 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Preferred Shares”) of Innovate/Protect, Inc., a
privately-held Delaware corporation, for $495,000. Innovate/Protect, Inc. maximizes the economic benefit of intellectual property assets, and
through its subsidiary, I/P Engine, initiated a patent infringement lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia
against Google, Inc., AOL, Inc., IAC Search & Media, Inc., Gannett Company, Inc. and Target Corporation for unlawfully using systems that
incorporate features claimed in two patents owned by I/P Engine. Upon acquisition of the shares of Preferred Shares, the Company converted
the Preferred Shares into shares of common stock.
On July 19, 2012, Innovate/Protect completed a merger with Vringo Inc. (NYSE Amex: VRNG) (“Vringo”), a provider of software
platforms for mobile social and video applications and the Company received 452,640 shares of Vringo common stock valued at $1.76 per
share on the date of the merger and 186,408 warrants to purchase common stock at an exercise price of $1.76 per share. Upon the receipt of
Vringo shares, the Company recognized this investment at fair value, using Level 1 inputs. The fair value of the Vringo warrants as of the date
of issuance was determined based upon Level 1, 2 and 3 inputs using the Black Scholes option pricing model using a risk free rate of 0.64%,
volatility of 65%, no dividend yield, a 5 year term and a fair value of Vringo common stock of $3.70 per share. As a result, in the third quarter
of 2012, the Company recognized a gain of $1,339,776 over its original acquisition price of $495,000.
On September 27, 2012, the Company exchanged the 452,640 Vringo shares and the 186,408 Vringo warrants for the cancellation of
certain convertible notes and the repurchase of certain warrants issued by the Company. This exchange is further discussed in Notes 9 and 10.
At December 31, 2012, the Company held no investments.
NOTE 5 — INVENTORIES
The Company’s inventories consisted of the following at December 31:

The Company’s inventories consisted of the following at December 31:

Finished goods
Raw materials
Total inventories
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$

2012
148,636
34,581

$

2011
224,209
50,382

$

183,217

$

274,391
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NOTE 6 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
The Company’s property and equipment, excluding assets of discontinued operations at December 31, consisted of the following:

Building and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Office equipment and furniture

$

2012
780,749
804,254
42,570
7,339

$

1,634,912
(585,341)

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment, net

$

1,049,571

2011
780,749
804,254
42,570
7,339
1,634,912
(446,584)

$

1,188,328

The components of depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Continuing operations — cost of goods sold
Continuing operations — operating expenses

$

2012
124,882
13,875

$

138,757
11,697

Discontinued operations
Total depreciation and amortization expense

2011
122,965
13,663
136,628
151,878

$

150,454

$

288,506

Balance, beginning of year
Additions
Disposals

$

2012
446,584
138,757
—

$

2011
309,956
136,628
—

Balance, end of year

$

585,341

$

446,584

Changes in accumulated depreciation and amortization at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

In 2011, due to cash flow shortfalls, the Company was not able to maintain the equipment within its IWR division and abandoned the
equipment. As of December 31, 2011, the Company recorded an expense of $951,668 related to the loss on abandonment of the IWR
equipment. On December 7, 2012, the Company sold its wholly-owned subsidiary, TerraSphere, including all of its assets.
NOTE 7 — LONG-LIVED ASSETS – IMPAIRMENT
As disclosed in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2011, as of the end of 2011, the
Company lacked the funds necessary to continue to fund the development of the Vertical Farming operations using the TerraSphere patents.
Throughout 2012, the Company investigated the sale of TerraSphere. During the third quarter of 2012, the Company obtained permission from
its lenders who hold debt instruments secured by the common stock of TerraSphere to consider a transaction for TerraSphere for no cash
consideration, provided that the buyer agreed to assume all of TerraSphere’s liabilities.
Following this approval, during the third quarter of 2012, the Company entered into discussions with an investor, which previously had
been negotiating for a license to use the TerraSphere technology. On October 23, 2012, the Company and the investor executed a letter of intent
pursuant to which the investor would acquire 100% of the common stock of TerraSphere by assuming TerraSphere’s liabilities. The Company
would receive no net cash proceeds from this sale.
As a result of these developments, as of September 30, 2012 the Company concluded that it had become probable that TerraSphere
would be sold or otherwise disposed of within one year. As a result, at September 30, 2012, the Company recorded the Vertical Farming
segment as discontinued operations. Based on the impairment guidance, an impairment charge of $1,774,921 was taken against the TerraSphere
patents to reduce the carrying amount of TerraSphere’s net assets to zero and is included in the loss from discontinued operations in the
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.
On December 7, 2012, as a result of the above activity, the Company sold its Vertical Farming business.
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On December 7, 2012, the Company sold all of its interest in its Vertical Farming segment and the only remaining intangible assets as of
December 31, 2012 relate to the Organic Fertilizer segment, specifically, its Gonzales, California facility.
Intangible assets consist of the following at December 31:
2012
Finite-lived intangible assets:
Existing customer relationships
Technological know-how

$

2,030,513
271,812

2011
$

2,302,325
(1,398,917)

Less: accumulated amortization
Total
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Trade name
Net intangibles assets

$

2,030,513
271,812
2,302,325
(1,110,909)

903,408

1,191,416

228,188

228,188

1,131,596

$

1,419,604

The consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss from continuing operations include amortization expense of $288,008
related to these intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Amortization expense for these intangibles is
estimated to be $288,008 annually for each of the next three years and $39,384 for the fourth year.
NOTE 9 — DEBT
TERM NOTES
In connection with the Company’s acquisition of TerraSphere Systems, the Company assumed TerraSphere’s existing liability to a third
party (unrelated to the Company or TerraSphere) for a promissory note payable in the amount of $350,000 with a fixed interest rate of 15% per
annum. Interest only payments totaling $4,375 were due monthly with the principal balance due August, 27, 2011. On March 9, 2011, the
Company entered into an agreement with the third party regarding its $350,000 promissory note payable. In consideration of receiving a lump
sum cash payment of $125,000, the third party released and discharged the Company from all obligations under the note. This gain on
settlement of $225,000 is included in the loss from discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss
for the year ended December 31, 2011.
NOTE PAYABLE — RELATED PARTY
In connection with the Company’s acquisition of TerraSphere Systems, the Company assumed an unsecured note payable to William
Gildea, Secretary of the Company and brother of Edward Gildea, President of the Company, which has an interest rate of 10% per annum. On
December 7, 2012, the Company sold its Vertical Farming Segment to a buyer who assumed all liabilities, including this term note, as part of
the purchase agreement. At December 31, 2011, the principal amount due totaled $72,351 and is included in liabilities of discontinued
operations in the consolidated balance sheet. The Company incurred interest expense totaling $6,759 and $7,234 for the years ended as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and is included in the loss from discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive loss.
CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE
On December 17, 2010, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“Purchase Agreement”) with certain institutional
investors (the “Buyers”). Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreement, the Company agreed to sell to the Buyers convertible notes in the
aggregate original principal amount of $4,990,000 (the “Notes”), which were convertible into shares of common stock. These Notes were to be
purchased by Buyers in two tranches, the first of which involved the sale of Notes in the aggregate original principal amount of $3,939,473 (the
“Initial Notes”). The closing of the purchase of the Initial Notes occurred simultaneously with the execution of the Purchase Agreement. The
Initial Notes are non-interest bearing and were issued with an original issue discount of approximately 4.8%, and the proceeds from the Initial
Notes were $3,444,555. During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded interest expense and amortization of
discount on this note of $0 and $3,458,533, respectively.
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On March 7, 2011, the second tranche of the sale of Notes was completed in the aggregate original principal amount of $1,050,527 (the
“Additional Notes”) and was completed upon the satisfaction of the conditions to closing set forth in the Purchase Agreement. The Additional
Notes were issued with an original issue discount of approximately 4.8%, and the proceeds from the Additional Notes were $1,000,000, with
proceeds net of costs totaling $920,000. The Additional Notes are not interest bearing, unless the Company is in default on the Notes, in which
case the Additional Notes carry an interest rate of 18% per annum. During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company
recorded interest expense and amortization of discount on this note of $0 and $1,050,526, respectively.
As of December 31, 2011, both the December 17, 2010 (tranche one) and the March 7, 2011 (tranche two) notes have been converted
into shares of the Company’s common stock and no principal balance remains.
On April 1, 2011, the Company entered into a second Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Second Purchase Agreement”) with an
institutional investor (the “Buyer”) whereby, the Company agreed to sell to the Buyer certain notes and warrants. Pursuant to the terms of the
Agreement, the Company agreed to sell to the Buyer a convertible note in the aggregate original principal amount of $3,850,000 (the “Original
Note”), which was convertible into shares of common stock. The Original Note was non-interest bearing and was issued with an original issue
discount (“OID”) of approximately 9%. The Company recorded the initial fair values of the OID and the conversion feature from the warrants
up to the gross proceeds of the note ($3,500,000) as a discount on the Original Note which was to be amortized ratably over the six-month
term. Net proceeds of the Original Note were $3,325,000 and at December 31, 2011, the carrying value of the Original Note was $2,685,686
and the associated unamortized discount was $527,878. On June 24, 2011, the Company filed a registration statement in order to issue shares
of its common stock to make the required loan repayments. On August 9, 2011, the Company amended the payment due dates on its April 1,
2011 Note. The lender agreed to extend the first payment (originally due August 1, 2011) to the earlier of the date that the underlying
registration statement becomes effective or until six months after the issuance of the Original Note when the restrictions on the shares lapse. In
consideration of this amendment the Company has agreed to re-price certain of the warrants held by the lender to an exercise price of $250. As
of April 2012, the note was fully converted into shares of the Company’s common stock and therefore no principal balance remains as of
December 31, 2012. During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded interest expense and amortization of
discount on this note of $527,878 and $3,220,905, respectively.
The Company applies Accounting Standards Codification Topic 470-50, Debt - Modifications and Extinguishments (ASC 470-50),
which defines a debt modification. ASC 470-50 establishes that a modification exists if the terms of the embedded conversion option from
which the change in the fair value of the embedded conversion option (calculated as the difference between the fair value of the embedded
conversion option immediately before and after the modification or exchange) is at least 10 percent of the carrying amount of the original debt
instrument immediately before the modification or exchange. On July 31, 2011, the effective date of the April 2011 Original Note amendment,
the Company measured the fair value of the embedded conversion option and determined that the change in fair value immediately before and
after the modification was greater than 10 percent resulting in a debt modification. During the year ended December 31, 2011, in accordance
with ASC 470, the Company recognized a loss on debt modification of $2,357,322 on the accompanying consolidated statement of operations
and comprehensive loss.
On January 3, 2012, the Company entered into a Purchase Agreement, whereby the Company agreed to sell to an investor twelve (12)
senior secured convertible notes (each note the “Note,” and collectively the “Notes”). The initial Note has an original principal amount of
$247,500, and was issued for a purchase price of $225,000. The remaining eleven (11) Notes each have an original principal amount of up to
$237,600. The aggregate principal amount of the Notes that it may issue pursuant to the Purchase Agreement is $2,861,100, for an aggregate
purchase price of $2,601,000, if certain conditions are met. Each Note matures eight (8) months after issuance. The closing of the purchase of
the initial Note occurred on January 6, 2012, with subsequent closings taking place each month from February through August 2012. The
Notes are being issued with an original issue discount of 10% and are non-interest bearing, unless the Company is in default on the Notes, in
which case the Notes carry an interest rate of 18% per annum. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company reduced the
outstanding balance of this debt by issuing 356,305,809 shares of its common stock to convert $635,100 of principal and exchanged a portion
of the Vringo Investment to reduce a further $718,760 of principal (see below). During the year ended December 31, 2012, the total principal
outstanding on these notes was $213,200. As of December 31, 2012, these notes are convertible into an amount equal to the outstanding
principal amount plus the conversion feature issued in conjunction with the debt as derivative instruments, as defined in Note 10. During the
year ended December 31, 2012, the Company recorded interest expense and amortization of discount on this note of $1,698,476.
On March 12, 2012, the Company entered into an agreement with two investors, pursuant to which it agreed to effect an additional
closing under the January 3, 2012 convertible note in which it will issue the buyers new notes (“New Notes” having an aggregate original
principal amount of $550,000 for a purchase price of $500,000, and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 2,619,048 shares of common stock at
an exercise price of $.105 per share. The notes are convertible into shares of its common stock at a conversion price equal to the lowest of (1)
$0.105 per share (the “Fixed Conversion Price”), (2) the price which is 85% of the three lowest closing sale prices of the its common stock
during the twenty trading day period preceding the applicable conversion date, and (3) the price which is 85% of the closing sale price of its
common stock on the trading day preceding the applicable conversion date; provided that if it makes certain dilutive issuances (with limited
exceptions), the Fixed Conversion Price of the Notes will be lowered to the per share price for the dilutive issuances. The closing of the
purchase of the Notes and Warrants occurred on March 13, 2012. During the year ended December 31, 2012 the Company reduced principal on
these notes in exchange for a portion of the Vringo Investment held by the Company in the amount of $163,000 (see below). As of December
31, 2012, the outstanding principal on this additional closing note was $387,000. As of December 31, 2012 these notes are convertible into an
amount equal to the outstanding principal amount plus the conversion feature issued in conjunction with the debt as derivative instruments, as
defined in Note 10. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company recorded interest expense and amortization of discount on this

defined in Note 10. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company recorded interest expense and amortization of discount on this
note of $600,000.
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On March 12, 2012, the effective date of the January 2012 and April 2011 additional Note amendments, the Company measured the fair
value of the embedded conversion option and determined that the change in fair value immediately before and after the amendments were greater
than 10 percent resulting in debt modifications. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company has recognized a loss on debt
modifications of $3,000,205 on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.
On March 12, 2012, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with an investor, pursuant to which the Company
acquired 150 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of Innovate/Protect, Inc., a privately-held Delaware corporation, for $495,000. In
the March 12, 2012 agreement detailed in the preceding paragraph, the Company agreed to utilize the proceeds from the issuance of the New
Notes to purchase the Preferred Shares (see Note 4).
On July 19, 2012, Innovate/Protect completed a merger with Vringo Inc. (NYSE Amex: VRNG), a provider of software platforms for
mobile social and video applications and the Company received 452,640 shares of Vringo common stock valued at $1.76 per share on the date
of the merger and 186,408 warrants to purchase Vringo common stock at an exercise price of $1.76 per share.
On September 27, 2012, the Company exchanged the 452,640 Vringo shares and the 186,408 warrants to purchase Vringo common
stock for the cancellation of certain convertible notes and the buyback of certain warrants issued by the Company. On September 27, 2012, the
fair value of the Vringo common stock and warrants was $1,469,515. The fair value of the Vringo shares as of the date of the exchange was
determined based upon Level 1 inputs, using the fair value of the Vringo common stock. The fair value of the Vringo warrants as of the date of
the exchange was determined based upon Level 1, 2 and 3 inputs using the Black Scholes option pricing model using a risk free rate of 0.64%,
volatility of 65%, no dividend yield, a 4.8 year term and a fair value of Vringo common stock of $2.95 per share. The Company reduced its
convertible debt by $881,760 in this exchange ($718,760 of the January 2012 Notes and $163,000 of the March 2012 additional notes) and
purchased 1,191,823,000 of its outstanding warrants, with a fair value of $1,792,466, for the remaining $587,755. As a result of this exchange,
the Company recognized a gain on debt extinguishment of $1,204,711 for the year ended December 31, 2012.
NOTE 10 — DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
On April 1, 2011, pursuant to the terms of the Second Purchase Agreement, the Company issued to the Buyer warrants to acquire shares
of common stock, in the form of three warrants: (i) “Series A Warrants.” (ii) “Series B Warrants.” and (iii) “Series C Warrants” (collectively,
the “April Warrants”).
The Series B Warrants became exercisable on June 13, 2011, the date upon which shareholder approval was obtained in connection with
the financing, and expire on March 13, 2012. The Series B Warrants provide that the holders are initially entitled to purchase an aggregate of
1,829 shares at an initial exercise price of $2,062.50 per share. If the Company made certain dilutive issuances (with limited exceptions), the
exercise price of the Series B Warrants would be lowered to the per share price for the dilutive issuances. In addition, the exercise price of the
Series B Warrants were to adjust to the average of the installment conversion prices used to repay the April 2011 Original Notes. The floor
price for the exercise price of the Series B Warrants is $1,700. The number of shares underlying the Series B Warrants adjusts whenever the
exercise price adjusts, such that at all times the aggregate exercise price of the Series B Warrants will be $3,771,797. During August 2011, in
connection with amending its April 2011 Original Note these Series B Warrants were repriced to $250. As of December 31, 2012, these
warrants have expired.
The Series A and Series C Warrants are exercisable six months and one day after issuance and have a five year term commencing on
June 13, 2011. The Series A Warrants provide that the holders are initially entitled to purchase an aggregate of 963 shares. The Series C
Warrants provide that the holders are initially entitled to purchase an aggregate of 869 shares. If on the expiration date of the Series B Warrants,
a holder of such warrant has not exercised such warrant for at least 50% of the shares underlying such warrant, the Company has the right to
redeem from such holder its Series C Warrant for $10,000 under certain circumstances. The warrants were redeemed on September 27, 2012
and are no longer outstanding as of December 31, 2012.
On January 3, 2012, in conjunction with the January Notes per Note 9, the Company also agreed to issue to the investor up to twelve
warrants to acquire shares of common stock (January Warrants), each such issuance to occur along with each purchase of a January Note. Each
warrant provides that the holder is initially entitled to purchase the number of shares of common stock equal to 50% of the number of shares of
common stock issuable upon conversion in full of the applicable January Note (based on initial fixed conversion price equal to the three lowest
closing sale prices of its common stock during the twenty trading day period preceding the issuance of the particular January Note, with respect
to each January Note, such term is referred to as the “Fixed Conversion Price”) at an initial exercise price equal to the Fixed Conversion Price of
the applicable January Note that is issued along with such warrant. As of December 31, 2012, 205,000,000 shares of common stock underlie
these warrants with an exercise price of $.00088 and an expiration date of April 2017. The 205,000,000 shares underlying the warrants is after
the September 27, 2012 buy back of 1,100,573,000 warrants related to these January Notes as a result of the exchange agreement described in
Note 9.
On March 12, 2012, the Company entered into an agreement (the “March Agreement”) with two investors, pursuant to which it agreed to
effect an additional closing of notes identical to the January Notes in which it issued the buyers new notes having an aggregate original principal
amount of $550,000 for a purchase price of $500,000 (the “New Notes”), and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 2,619,048 shares of

amount of $550,000 for a purchase price of $500,000 (the “New Notes”), and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 2,619,048 shares of
common stock at an exercise price of $0.105 per share (the “New Warrants”). The New Notes and New Warrants have identical terms to the
January Notes and January Warrants described above. As of December 31, 2012, 221,250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock
underlie these warrants with an exercise price of $.00088 and an expiration date of March 2017. The 221,250,000 shares underlying the
warrants is after the September 27, 2012 buy back of 91,250,000 warrants related to these March Notes as a result of the exchange agreement
described in Note 9.
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As of December 31, 2012, the Company has recognized the following warrants as derivative instruments:

Class/
Issue Date
Series
Price
05/07/09*
Class C
$250 -5,000
05/07/09*
Class D
250 -5,100
09/08/09
Class G
6,250
04/22/10
Class I
5,300
12/17/10** Series A
.00088
12/17/10** Series C
.00088
04/01/11
Series A
.00088
04/01/11
Series B
.00088
04/01/11
Series C
.00088
01/03/12
Notes
.00088
03/12/12
New Notes
.00088

Outstanding
at December
31,
2011
Issued/Amended
177
—
83
—
500
—
233
—
499
141,760,501
499
—
963
273,436,037
2,219
—
869
—
—
890,375,000
—
312,500,000
6,042

*

1,618,071,538

Exercised
or
Canceled
(177)
(83)
(500)
(233)
(141,761,000)
(499)
(273,437,000)
(2,219)
(869)
(685,375,000)
(91,250,000)
(1,191,827,580)

Outstanding
Fair
and
Fair
Value at
Exercisable at
Value at
December,
December 31, December 31,
31
2012
2012
2011
— $
— $
116
—
—
54
—
—
611
—
—
289
—
—
1,316
—
—
1,316
—
—
2,572
—
—
1,022
—
—
2,322
205,000,000
302,482
—
221,250,000
326,360
—
426,250,000 $

628,842 $

9,618

The above table reflects repricing of all warrants to $250 in August 2011, except 27 Class C and 13 Class D warrants which remained at
$5,000 and $5,100, respectively.

** Includes warrants issued on March 7, 2011.
The Company also recognized certain conversion features issued in conjunction with debt as derivative instruments:

Issue Date
April 1, 2011
January 3, 2012
March 12, 2012

Price
$

2,000
.0012
.0012

Outstanding
at
December
31,
2011

Issued

Exercised
or
Canceled

Outstanding
and
Exercisable
at
December
31,
2012

Fair Value
at
December
31,
2012

Fair Value
at
December
31,
2011

2,083
—
—

—
177,666,667
322,500,000

(2,083)
—
—

—
177,666,667
322,500,000

$

—
172,560
305,003

$

6,157,299
—
—

2,083

500,166,667

(2,083)

500,166,667

$

477,563

$

6,157,299
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The derivative fair value amount associated with the conversion features issued on the April 2011 derivative instrument has increased as
the conversion stock price has decreased from the original conversion price of $2,000.
In March 2012, the Company amended certain provisions of its April 2011 Original Note financing to amend the conversion price
definition and as a result the Company recorded charges in its consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2012 of
$3,000,205, associated with these debt modifications.
The warrants and conversion features above were revalued at December 31, 2012 and 2011 using a binomial lattice pricing model using
certain assumptions related to the probability of exercise and the following unobservable inputs:
Risk free interest rate
Dividend yield
Volatility
Expected term

0.11% - 0.72%
—
223% - 227%
6 months to 4 years

In addition to the above derivative transactions, on November 12, 2010, the Company completed the acquisition of TerraSphere Systems,
LLC, where it determined that as a result of an anti-dilution provision included in the purchase agreement, certain additional shares may have to
be issued. The Company estimated that approximately 408 shares could be issued and classified the anti-dilution provision as a derivative
liability. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company revalued the derivative liability to $583 and $140,164, respectively, based on the
closing share price of the stock on that date.
The derivative liabilities reflected on the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2012 and 2011, totaled $1,106,988 and $6,307,081,
respectively, and the derivative gains for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were $9,154,173 and $5,823,629, respectively.
NOTE 11 — FINANCIAL MEASUREMENTS
CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK
The Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to a concentration of credit risk are cash and accounts receivable.
The Company places its cash in highly rated financial institutions, which are continually reviewed by senior management for financial
stability. Effective December 31, 2010, extending through December 31, 2012, all noninterest-bearing transaction accounts are fully insured,
regardless of the balance of the cash account. Generally the Company’s cash and cash equivalents in interest-bearing accounts exceeds financial
depository insurance limits. However, the Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes that its cash and cash
equivalents are not exposed to significant credit risk.
In 2012, three organic fertilizer customers accounted for 58% (35%, 12%, 11%) of sales. In 2011, four organic fertilizer customers
accounted for 53% (12%, 19%, 11%, 11%) of sales. Three customers and four customers accounted for 79% and 89% of accounts receivable at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the
inability of its customers to make required payments. If the financial condition of the Company’s customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make such payments, additional allowances may be required. An increase in allowances for customer non-payment
would increase the Company’s expenses during the period in which such allowances are made. Based upon the Company’s knowledge at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, the reserve for doubtful accounts totaled approximately $0 and $1,044,000, which related to discontinued
operations, respectively.
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
The Company’s liabilities that are reported at fair value in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2012 and
2011 were as follows:
Balance

Level of
Hierarchy
Obligations to issue shares*
Derivative warrants and anti-dilution provision liabilities

Level 2
Level 3

* Included in liabilities of discontinued operations on the consolidated balance sheets.
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2012
$

—
1,106,988

2011
$

9,127
6,307,081
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
The following table reflects the change in Level 3 fair value of the Company’s derivative liabilities for the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011:
2012

2011

Balance, beginning of year
Conversions
Issuances
Effect of modification, exchanges and settlements
Net gains

$ (6,307,081) $ (7,126,329)
655,191
2,002,877
(3,401,535)
(4,667,269)
(1,207,736)
(2,339,989)
9,154,173
5,823,629

Balance, end of year

$ (1,106,988) $ (6,307,081)

The Company has described the pricing model and assumptions utilized in calculating the derivative liabilities in Note 10.
Valuation policies and procedures are managed by the Company's finance group, which regularly monitors fair value measurements. Fair
value measurements, including those categorized within Level 3, are prepared and reviewed on their issuance date and then on an annual basis
and any third-party valuations are reviewed for reasonableness and compliance with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement.
The Company has other non-derivative financial instruments, such as cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
long-term debt, for which carrying amounts approximate fair value.
NOTE 12 — STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AUTHORIZED SHARES
On June 8, 2012, the Company’s stockholders approved the amendment to the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation to increase the
number of shares of common stock that the Company is authorized to issue from 500,000,000 shares to 1,000,000,000 shares.
On October 18, 2010, the Board approved the issuance 17,500 shares of the Company’s preferred stock which was then designated
Series A Preferred stock. Each share of Series A Preferred is convertible into a number of shares of common stock equal to (1) the stated value
of the share ($1,000), divided by (2) $2,715 (the “Conversion Price”) which aggregates to 6,446 shares of Company common stock. Holders of
the Series A Preferred are entitled to receive cumulative dividends at the rate per share (as a percentage of the stated value per share) of 1% per
annum (subject to increase in certain circumstances), payable annually and on each conversion date. The dividends are payable, during the first
three years after issuance, at the election of the Company, and thereafter, at the election of the holders, in cash or in shares of common stock
valued at the Conversion Price (or in some combination thereof). During May 2011, 4,219 shares of Series A Preferred stock were converted
into 1,554 shares of the Company’s common stock.
REVERSE SPLIT OF COMMON STOCK
On November 7, 2011, the Company implemented a one for ten (1:10) reverse split of its common stock. The effect of the reverse stock
split is retroactively reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and footnotes.
On February 22, 2012 the Company implemented a one for five hundred (1:500) reverse split of its common stock. The effect of the
reverse stock split is retroactively reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and footnotes.
STOCK ISSUANCES
On January 25, 2011 the Company issued 640 shares of its common stock to a consultant satisfying a $1,344,000 accrual for services
rendered in connection with the settlement of certain Woodbridge, NJ obligations.
On February 23, 2011, the Company issued 433 restricted shares at $1,850 (the closing price as of the date of issuance) to certain
employees under the Amended and Restated 2006 Stock Option Plan. The consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss for the
year ended December 31, 2011 includes a charge of $801,050 for this compensation.
During April and June 2011, the Company issued 580 restricted shares of its common stock as compensation under its stock option plan.
These shares were issued to employees and directors and are restricted for a period of two years from issuance. The Company recorded
compensation expense of $756,775 in its consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2011,
based upon the closing price of the shares on the commitment date.
On June 20, 2011, the Company issued 1,554 shares of its common stock in exchange for the return of 4,219 shares of its preferred

stock.

On June 20, 2011, the Company issued 1,554 shares of its common stock in exchange for the return of 4,219 shares of its preferred

37

CONVERTED ORGANICS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
NOTE 12 — STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Continued)
STOCK ISSUANCES (Continued)
On June 10, 2011, the Company issued 102 shares of its common stock to vendors for services. The shares were restricted for a period
of six months. The Company reduced the vendor payables by $76,250 based upon the closing price of the shares on the commitment date.
On November 23, 2011, the Company issued 907 shares of its common stock to vendors for services. The shares were restricted for a
period of six months. The Company reduced the vendor payables by $7,528 based upon the closing price of the shares on the commitment date.
During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company issued 187,581 shares of its common stock in settlement of amounts due on the
convertible notes by $8,174,829.
During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company has issued 536,627,391 shares of its common stock to reduce principal of
$3,975,978 on its convertible debt.
WARRANTS
On February 16, 2007, in connection with the Company’s initial public offering, the Company sold 180,000 equity units consisting of
one share of common stock, one Class A warrant and one Class B warrant. On March 13, 2007, the Class A and Class B warrants began to
trade as separate securities. The Class A warrants were exercisable for one share of common stock, plus accumulated stock dividends, for
$41,250 and expired on February 16, 2012. If certain conditions were met, the Company could redeem these warrants at a price of $1,250 per
warrant prior to the expiration date. The warrants were redeemed during 2008. The Class B warrants are exercisable for one share of common
stock, plus accumulated stock dividends, for $55,000. The Class B warrants expired on February 16, 2012.
On May 26, 2009, as an inducement for the Investor to exercise 300 warrants at $7,000, the Company issued the Investor an additional
300 Class E warrants with an exercise price of $8,150 and an expiration date of May 27, 2014. Each warrant may be exchanged for one share
of common stock. These warrants were cancelled as a result of our September 27, 2012 Investment exchange (see Note 4).
On July 15, 2009, in connection with the issuance of 392 shares to an institutional investor, the Company issued Class F warrants to
purchase 117 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $6,250 per share. The Warrants may be exercised commencing
January 15, 2010 until July 15, 2014. These warrants were cancelled as a result of our September 27, 2012 Investment exchange (see Note 4).
On October 20, 2009, the Company issued 3,450 Class H warrants in conjunction with its secondary public offering, described above.
Each Class H warrant may be exchanged for one share of common stock at an exercise price of $6,500, and have an expiration date of
October 14, 2014. Each warrant may be exchanged for one share of common stock.
On July 19, 2010, in connection with the issuance of 325 shares to Atlas, the Company issued Class J warrants to purchase 325 shares
of its common stock at an exercise price of $2,700 per share. The Warrants may be exercised commencing July 19, 2010 until July 18, 2015.
On August 30, 2010, in connection with the issuance of 231 shares to Atlas, the Company issued Class K warrants to purchase 231
shares of its common stock at an exercise price of $2,700 per share. The Warrants may be exercised commencing August 30, 2010 until
August 29, 2015.
In addition to the warrants classified as derivatives, the Company has also recognized certain warrants as equity instruments.
The following table sets forth the outstanding warrants classified as equity instruments as of December 31, 2012:

Warrants
Class B
Class E
Class F
Class H
Class J
Class K

Price
$

55,000
8,150
6,250
6,500
2,700
2,700

Outstanding
at
December
31,
2011*
530
300
117
3,450
325
231
4,953

Issued

Exercised
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—

Outstanding
at
December
31,
2012

Exercisable
at
December
31,
2012

(530)
(300)
(117)
—
—
—

—
—
—
3,450
325
231

—
—
—
3,450
325
231

(947)

4,006

4,006

Canceled

* There was no activity for the outstanding warrants classified as equity instruments for the year ended December 31, 2011
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STOCK OPTIONS
The 2006 Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan (the “Option Plan”) has been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors and
stockholders. The Option Plan authorizes the grant and issuance of options and other equity compensation to employees, officers and
consultants.
On April 6, 2011, the Company’s Compensation Committee approved a stock option grant under the Amended and Restated 2006 Stock
Option Plan. A total of 566 options were granted with an exercise price of $1,150, which was the closing price as of the date of grant. The cost
associated with this option grant was calculated using a Black-Scholes model and the following assumptions: risk-free interest rate of 1.6%; no
dividend yield; volatility of 113.2%; expected term of 5 years. The resulting expense of approximately $612,717 is reflected in the Company’s
consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2011.
On April 20, 2011, the Company’s Compensation Committee approved a stock option grant under the Amended and Restated 2006
Stock Option Plan. A total of 44 options were granted with an exercise price of $1,150, which was the closing price as of the date of grant. The
cost associated with this option grant was calculated using a Black-Scholes model and the following assumptions: risk-free interest rate of
1.6%; no dividend yield; volatility of 113.2% and expected term of 5 years. The resulting expense of approximately $38,603 is reflected in the
Company’s consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2011.
On June 13, 2011, the Company’s Compensation Committee approved a stock option grant under the Amended and Restated 2006 Stock
Option Plan. A total of 26 options were granted with an exercise price of $750, which was the closing price as of the date of grant. The cost
associated with this option grant was calculated using a Black-Scholes model and the following assumptions: risk-free interest rate of 1.6%; no
dividend yield; volatility of 113.2% and expected term of 5 years. The resulting expense of approximately $18,124 is reflected in the
Company’s consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2011.
During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company did not issue any stock options, none were exercised and 327 were forfeited.
Therefore, as of December 31, 2012, the Company had 778 stock options outstanding with a weighted average price per share of $5,100 and an
average remaining life of 8 years.
As of December 31, 2012, the Company had 41,778 options available to grant under the plan.
Stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:
Weighted
Average
Stock
Price per
Options
Share
729 $
8,200
566
1,150
44
1,150
26
750
(260)
3,400

Outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2010
Granted
Granted
Granted
Forfeited
Outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2011
Granted
Granted
Granted
Forfeited

1,105 $
0
0
0
(327) $

Outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2012

778

$

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price
$
8,200

Average
Remaining
Life (Years)
8.8

4,600
0
0
0
3,400

$

4,600

9.0

5,100

$

5,100

8.0

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and exercisable is $0 at December 31, 2012 and 2011. The aggregate intrinsic value
represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value, based on options with an exercise price less than the Company’s closing stock price of $.0015 and
$15.00 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, which would have been received by the option holders had those option holders
exercised their options as of that date.
At December 31, 2012, there was no unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements
granted under the Company’s stock option plan. No options were exercised in the year ended December 31, 2012 or 2011 and subject to any
limitation under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code as described below.
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At December 31, 2012, the Company had federal and state net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $98,200,000 amd
$61,100,000, respectively, which may be offset against future taxable income, if any, expiring at various dates through 2032 and 2017,
respectively, and subject to any limitations under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code as described below.
The effective tax rate based on the federal and state statutory rates is reconciled to the actual tax rate for the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011 as follows:
2012
Statutory federal income tax rate
Statutory state income tax rate
Valuation allowance on net deferred tax assets
Effective tax rate

2011
34%
6
(40)

34%
6
(40)

—%

—%

The components of the net deferred tax asset (liability) at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
2012
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating losses
Depreciation and amortization
Accrued compensation
Stock options
Other reserves
Valuation allowance

2011

$ 35,702,000 $ 34,459,000
(571,000)
(1,874,000)
120,000
120,000
2,192000
2,192,000
—
395,000
(37,443,000)
(35,292,000)
$

—

$

—

The Company has fully reserved, as of December 31, 2012, approximately $37,443,000 of net deferred tax asset with a valuation
allowance of the same amount, because the likelihood of realization of the tax benefit cannot be determined to be more likely than not.
The Company’s valuation allowance increased $2,151,000 and $4,638,000 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.
The Company complies with the provisions of ASC 740. The guidance addresses the determination of whether tax benefits claimed or
expected to be claimed on a tax return should be recorded in the financial statements. Under ASC 740, the Company may recognize the tax
benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on an examination by the taxing
authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The Company has determined that the Company has no uncertain tax positions
requiring recognition under the guidance.
The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax of certain state jurisdictions. The Company has not been audited
by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service or any states in connection with its income taxes. The periods from January 1, 2009 to December 31,
2012 remain open to examination by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service and state authorities. However, since the Company has net operating
loss carryforwards, which may be utilized in future years to offset taxable income, all years that include carryforwards are subject to review by
relevant taxing authorities to the extent of the carryforward utilized.
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As of December 31, 2012 and 2011 the Company has an accrued liability totaling $302,298 and $358,937, respectively, representing
accrued compensation to officers, directors and consultants, which is included in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets.
In connection with the Company’s acquisition of TerraSphere Systems during 2010, the Company assumed an unsecured note payable to
William Gildea, Secretary of the Company and brother of Edward Gildea, the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, that has an
interest rate of 10% per annum. The principal amount due totaled $72,351 and had accrued interest totaling $26,207 at December 31, 2011
which is included in liabilities of discontinued operations on the consolidated balance sheets. The Company incurred interest expense totaling
$6,759 and $7,234 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, which is included in loss from discontinued operations in
the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. On December 7, 2012, the Company sold its Vertical Farming Segment to a
buyer who assumed all liabilities, including this term note, as part of the purchase agreement.
The Company engaged the services of a Law Firm to represent it in two legal proceedings; a partner in that law firm is Mark Gildea,
bother of Edward Gildea, the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. For a period of time during 2011 Mr. Mark Gildea also
served as President of TerraSphere, Inc.
The Secretary of Converted Organics, Inc. is William Gildea, a brother of Edward Gildea, the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer.
NOTE 15 — PROFIT SHARING PLAN
The Company has a 401(k) plan for its employees. The plan allows for employees to have a pretax deduction of up to 15% of pay set
aside for retirement. The plan also allows for a Company match and profit sharing contribution. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the
Company has not provided a match of employee contributions nor did the Company contribute a profit sharing amount to the plan.
NOTE 16 — DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
On December 7, 2012, the Company entered into a Purchase and Sale of Business Agreement with RI Vertical Farm Partners, LLC ("RI
Vertical"), whereby the Company transferred its ownership of its wholly-owned subsidiary, TerraSphere Inc. and the subsidiaries of
TerraSphere Inc. to RI Vertical for consideration of $5.00. Under the Agreement, RI Vertical receives all of the assets of TerraSphere Inc. and
its subsidiaries and assumes all of the liabilities of TerraSphere Inc. and its subsidiaries. As a result of the TerraSphere Inc. sale, the Company
has presented its Vertical Farming segment as discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
On September 17, 2012, the Company entered into an agreement with Heartland Technology Partners (“HTP”) whereby the Company
and HTP agreed to resolve a dispute relating to the Supply and License Agreement that both parties entered into on March 23, 2010. The
Supply and License Agreement governed certain Industrial Wastewater technology owned by HTP that was licensed to the Company. In
exchange for $650,000 and the settlement of all disputes, the Company agreed to terminate the Supply and License Agreement dated March 23,
2010 and will no longer operate its Industrial Wastewater segment. The Company had recorded the value of the Supply and License agreement
at $500,000 on its balance sheet and therefore recognized a $150,000 gain on the termination of the Supply and License Agreement which is
recorded in the Statements of Operations as discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2012.
In 2010, the Company discontinued operations at its facility in Woodbridge, NJ. The Company is actively working with vendors to
satisfy its liabilities outstanding at December 31, 2012. Income recognized from this discontinued operation is the result of favorable settlements
with certain of its creditors.
The following table summarizes the components of the loss from the discontinued operations:
For the Years Ended December
31,
2012
2011
$
— $
397,937

Revenue from discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Loss on investment in discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations

$
$

41

(2,100,896) $
(7,740,573)
(9,841,469) $

(6,905,768)
—
(6,905,768)
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The following table provides the assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations, in the consolidated balance sheets as December 31,
2012 and 2011:

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Deposits and other non-current assets
Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Assets of discontinued operations

Notes payable – related party
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Obligation to issue shares
Deferred revenue
Liabilities of discontinued operations

December 31,
2012
$
—
—
—
—

December 31,
2011
$
14,098
505,852
132,325
2,969,000

$

—

$

3,621,275

$

—
514,064
—
—
—

$

72,351
1,217,087
27,953
9,127
95,000

$

514,064

$

1,421,518

NOTE 17 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
LEASES
During 2012 the Company terminated its office lease on its Boston office and moved to a small office space, which the Company leases
for $2,800 per month. The terms of the rental agreement are on a month to month basis. In addition, the Company leases the land at its
Gonzales Organic Fertilizer facility. All other leases, including its former Boston office lease and Canadian TerraSphere lease have either been
terminated or transferred in the sale of the business segment in 2012.The Gonzales Facility lease expires in January 2018. Rent expense
incurred in connection with leases was approximately $339,000 and $283,000 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
2012:

The following table sets forth the Company’s aggregate future payments under its operating lease commitments as of December 31,

Year ending December 31,
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
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$

124,898
128,645
132,504
136,479
140,573
11,743

$

674,842

CONVERTED ORGANICS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
NOTE 17 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
On August 25, 2011, TerraSphere Inc., the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, was named as a defendant in an action filed in the
United States district court for the eastern district of Michigan against TerraSphere Systems, LLC and TerraSphere Inc. The plaintiff alleges,
among other things, breach of fiduciary responsibilities regarding a joint venture agreement. The parties sought to resolve this matter but were
unsuccessful. Responsive pleadings were filed and TerraSphere Inc. has been dismissed from the lawsuit. TerraSphere Systems, LLC remains a
defendant, however, any obligation to defend or loss resulting from this lawsuit was assumed by RI Vertical, the purchaser of TerraSphere, Inc.
on December 7, 2012.
In January 2012, Converted Organics Inc. (the “Company”) received notice that a complaint has been filed in the United States District
Court for the District of Massachusetts, captioned Aboriginal Import Export, Ltd. and Nicholas G. Brusatore (the “plaintiffs”) v. TerraSphere
Systems LLC, Converted Organics Inc., William A. Gildea, Edward Gildea, Mark C. Gildea, and TerraSphere Inc. (the “defendants”). The
allegations in the complaint relate to the Company’s acquisition of TerraSphere Systems, LLC in November 2010. On April 27, 2012, the
parties entered into a settlement agreement pursuant to which the plaintiffs voluntarily dismissed the action with prejudice and without costs or
fees. Pursuant to the settlement agreement, the parties agreed to terminate the restrictive covenant included in the acquisition agreement regarding
the ability of the plaintiffs to compete with the Company. In addition, the parties agreed to release their claims against each other as they related
to the legal action or the acquisition agreement pursuant to which the Company acquired TerraSphere Systems, LLC.
The Company has three lawsuits associated with the collection of unsecured accounts payable due to the closing of its Woodbridge, NJ
facility in 2010. The amounts of these accounts payable are listed as liabilities of discontinued operations on the consolidated balance sheets.
NOTE 18 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On February 5, 2013, The Company entered into a letter agreement with two institutional investors, which amended the Company’s
existing Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2012, by and between the Company and one of the institutional investors to
provide for an additional closing pursuant to which the investors agreed to purchase an aggregate original principal amount of $374,000 of
additional senior secured convertible notes and additional warrants to purchase an aggregate of 155,833,332 shares of the Company's common
stock. These Warrants expire on January 31, 2018 and have an initial exercise price of $.0012.
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ITEM 9.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE
NONE

ITEM 9A.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
As of the end of the period covered by this report, an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) was
performed under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.
Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective as of December 31, 2012 to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports it files and submits under the Exchange Act
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and that information required to
be disclosed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief
Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such
term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of our consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. Under the supervision and with the participation of our Company’s management, including the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2012 based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of our consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of our assets that could
have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, the management of our Company concluded
that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2012.
Moody, Famiglietti & Andronico, LLP, our registered independent public accounting firm, was not required to and has not issued a
report concerning the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There were no other changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2012
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
ITEM 9B.

OTHER INFORMATION

None.
PART III
ITEM 10.

DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by Item 10 regarding directors, executive officers, promoters and control persons is incorporated by reference
to the information appearing under the caption “Directors and Executive Officers” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement relating to its
2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the close of its fiscal year.
ITEM 11.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 is incorporated by reference to the information appearing under the caption “Executive
Compensation” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement relating to its 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC
within 120 days after the close of its fiscal year.

within 120 days after the close of its fiscal year.
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ITEM 12.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans
Equity Compensation Plan Information

Plan category
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights
(a)
778
—

Total

778

Weightedaverage
exercise price
of
outstanding
options,
warrants
and rights
(b)
$
5,100
—
$

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance
under equity
compensation plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column (a))
(c)
41,778
—

5,100

41,778(1)

(1) The Stock Option Plan (“Option Plan”) includes an “evergreen” provision pursuant to which on January 1st of each year, commencing in
2009, the number of shares authorized for issuance under the Option Plan is automatically increased to an amount equal to 20% of the
shares of the common stock outstanding on the last day of the prior fiscal year. On January 1, 2013, the number of shares available for
issuance pursuant to the Option Plan increased to 107,367,256 shares due to the foregoing provision.
ITEM 13.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 is incorporated by reference to the information appearing under the caption “Certain Relationships
and Related Transactions” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement relating to its 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the
SEC within 120 days after the close of the fiscal year.
ITEM 14.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 is incorporated by reference to the information appearing under the caption “Principal Accounting
Fees and Services” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement relating to its 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC
within 120 days after the close of its fiscal year.
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PART IV
ITEM 15.

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Exhibit
Number
2.1
2.2
3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6
4.7
4.8
4.9
4.10
4.11
4.12
4.13
4.14
4.15
4.16
4.17
4.18
4.19
10.1

Description
Asset Purchase Agreement between the Registrant and United Organic Products, LLC, dated January 21, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.02 to our current report on Form 8-K filed January 29, 2008)
Asset Purchase Agreement between the Registrant and Waste Recovery Industries, LLC, dated January 21, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.03 to our current report on Form 8-K filed January 29, 2008)
Registrant’s Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Registration Statement on
Form SB-2 filed June 21, 2006)
Registrant’s Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed June 21,
2006)
Registrant’s Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to our
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed September 15, 2009)
Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, dated
October 18, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Form 8-K filed on October 18, 2010)
Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Form SB-2/A filed January 25, 2007)
Form of Unit Certificate issued in initial public offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 on Post-Effective
Amendment No. 1 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed February 20, 2007)
Registration Rights Agreement between the Registrant and Professional Offshore Opportunity Fund, Ltd., Professional
Traders Fund, LLC and High Capital Funding, LLC, dated January 24, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.06 to
our current report on Form 8-K filed January 29, 2008)
Form of Class H Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed
November 16, 2009)
Form of Unit Certificate issued in October 2009 offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to our Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q filed November 16, 2009)
Form of Warrant issued in May 2009 offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Form 8-K filed on May 20,
2009)
Form of Warrant issued in July 2009 offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Form 8-K filed on July 16,
2009)
Class G Common Stock Purchase Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to our Form 8-K filed on
September 14, 2009)
Class H Warrant Agreement between the Registrant and Computershare Trust Company N.A., dated October 20, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our Form 8-K filed on October 21, 2009)
Unit Conversion Agreement between the Registrant and Computershare Trust Company N.A., dated October 20, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Form 8-K filed on October 21, 2009)
Form of Senior Secured Convertible Note issued pursuant to Securities Purchase Agreement by and among Converted
Organics Inc. and Iroquois Master Fund, Ltd. dated April 1, 2011 (“April 2011 SPA”) (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 4.1 of the Form 8-K filed April 1, 2011)
Form of Series A Warrant issued pursuant to April 2011 SPA (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.2 of the Form 8K filed April 1, 2011)
Form of Series B Warrant issued pursuant to April 2011 SPA (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.3 of the Form 8-K
filed April 1, 2011)
Form of Series C Warrant issued pursuant to April 2011 SPA (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.4 of the Form 8-K
filed April 1, 2011)
Form of Convertible Note issued pursuant to the letter agreement between Converted Organics Inc., Iroquois Master Fund,
Ltd. and Iroquois Capital Opportunity Fund, Ltd. dated November 2, 2011 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 of
the Form 8-K filed November 3, 2011)
Form of Convertible Note issued at the initial closing of the Securities Purchase Agreement by and among Converted
Organics Inc., Iroquois Master Fund, Ltd. and Iroquois Capital Opportunity Fund, Ltd. dated January 3, 2012 (“January
2012 SPA”) (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 of the Form 8-K filed January 3, 2012)
Form of Convertible Note to be issued at the remaining closings of the January 2012 SPA (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 4.2 of the Form 8-K filed January 3, 2012)
Form of Warrant issued pursuant to January 2012 SPA (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.3 of the Form 8-K filed
January 3, 2012)
Form of Senior Secured Convertible Note issued pursuant to the letter agreement between Converted Organics Inc.,
Iroquois Master Fund, Ltd. and Iroquois Capital Opportunity Fund, Ltd. dated January 12, 2012 (incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 4.1 of the Form 8-K/A filed January 17, 2012)
Amended and Restated 2006 Stock Option Plan and Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Annex A of our Definitive Proxy Statement filed March 5, 2008)
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10.2
10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8
10.9
10.10
10.11
10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17
10.18
10.19
10.20
10.21
10.22
10.23
10.24
10.25
10.26
10.27
10.28
10.29
10.30
10.31

Service Agreement between the Registrant and ECAP, LLC, dated March 1, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed June 21, 2006)
Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Edward J. Gildea, dated March 2, 2006 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed June 21, 2006)
Class C Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated May 7, 2009 entitling Iroquois Master Fund Ltd the right to purchase
750,000 shares of Converted Organics Inc.’s common stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 on Form 8-K filed on
May 13, 2009)
Class D Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated May 7, 2009 entitling Iroquois Master Fund Ltd. the right to purchase
350,000 shares of Converted Organics Inc.’s common stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 on Form 8-K filed on
May 13, 2009)
Class G Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated September 14, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 on Form 8-K
filed September 14, 2009)
Promissory Note in favor of Airside, Inc. dated September 24, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 8-K
filed September 28, 2010)
Form of Representatives Unit Purchase Option issued in October 2009 offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on
Form 8-K filed on October 21, 2010)
Promissory Note in favor of Heartland Technology Partners, LLC dated March 23, 2010 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.34 on Form 10-K filed on March 31, 2010)
Supply and License Agreement between Registrant and Heartland Technology Partners, LLC dated March 23, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 on Form 10-K filed on March 31, 2010)
Lease Agreement between Registrant and SWS Lewis Wharf, LLC dated November 24, 2009 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.36 on Form 10-K filed on March 31, 2010)
Exchange Agreement dated October 18, 2010 between the Registrant and Oppenheimer Rochester National Municipals and
Oppenheimer New Jersey Municipal Fund (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 on Form 8-K filed on October 19,
2010).
Termination and Surrender Agreement dated October 15, 2010 between Converted Organics of Woodbridge, LLC and
Recycling Technology Development (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 on Form 8-K filed on October 19, 2010).
Securities Purchase Agreement by and among Converted Organics Inc. and Iroquois Master Fund, Ltd. dated April 1, 2011
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K filed April 1, 2011)
Form of Registration Rights Agreement by and among Converted Organics Inc. and Iroquois Master Fund, Ltd. (incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10.2 of the Form 8-K filed April 1, 2011)
Form of Security Agreement by and among Converted Organics Inc., certain subsidiaries of Converted Organics Inc. and
Iroquois Master Fund, Ltd. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 of the Form 8-K filed April 1, 2011)
Form of Guaranty Agreement between the subsidiaries of Converted Organics Inc. and Iroquois Master Fund, Ltd.
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 of the Form 8-K filed April 1, 2011)
Severance Agreement by and between Converted Organics Inc. and Edward J. Gildea dated April 20, 2011 (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K filed April 25, 2011)
Severance Agreement by and between Converted Organics Inc. and David R. Allen dated April 20, 2011 (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.2 of the Form 8-K filed April 25, 2011)
Letter agreement between Converted Organics Inc., Iroquois Master Fund, Ltd. and Iroquois Capital Opportunity Fund,
Ltd. dated August 10, 2011 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K filed August 10, 2011)
Letter agreement between Converted Organics Inc., Iroquois Master Fund, Ltd. and Iroquois Capital Opportunity Fund,
Ltd. dated October 19, 2011 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K filed October 20, 2011)
Letter agreement between Converted Organics Inc., Iroquois Master Fund, Ltd. and Iroquois Capital Opportunity Fund,
Ltd. dated November 2, 2011 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K filed November 3, 2011)
Securities Purchase Agreement by and among Converted Organics Inc., Iroquois Master Fund, Ltd. and Iroquois Capital
Opportunity Fund, Ltd. dated January 3, 2012 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K filed January
3, 2012)
Letter agreement between Converted Organics Inc., Iroquois Master Fund, Ltd. and Iroquois Capital Opportunity Fund,
Ltd. dated January 12, 2012 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K/A filed January 17, 2012)
Letter agreement between Converted Organics Inc., Iroquois Master Fund, Ltd. and Hudson Bay Master Fund Ltd. dated
March 12, 2012 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K filed March 14, 2012)
Securities Purchase Agreement between Converted Organics Inc. and Hudson Bay Master Fund Ltd. dated March 12, 2012
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 of the Form 8-K filed March 14, 2012)
Letter agreement between Converted Organics Inc. and Iroquois Master Fund, Ltd. dated March 22, 2012 (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K filed March 23, 2012)
Letter agreement between Converted Organics Inc. and institutional investor dated March 22, 2012 (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.2 of the Form 8-K filed March 23, 2012)
Letter agreement between Converted Organics Inc., Iroquois Master Fund, Ltd. and an institutional investor dated
September 27, 2012 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 9.1 of the Form 8-K filed October 1, 2012)
Purchase and Sale of Business Agreement between Converted Organics Inc. and RI Vertical Farm Partners, LLC dated
December 7, 2012 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.1 of the Form 8-K filed December 13, 2012)
Letter agreement between Converted Organics Inc. and two institutional investors dated February 5, 2013 (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K filed on February 8, 2013)
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14.1
*21.1
*23.1
*31.1
*31.2
*32.1
*32.2
*101.INS
*101.SCH
*101.CAL
*101.LAB
*101.PRE
*101.DEF

Code of Ethics (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 on Form 10-K filed on March 31, 2010)
List of Subsidiaries
Consent of Moody, Famiglietti & Andronico, LLP
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
XBRL Instance document.**
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.**
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.**
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.**
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.**
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.**

* Filed as an Exhibit herein.
** Users of this interactive data file are advised pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T that this interactive data file is deemed not filed or
part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, is deemed not filed for
purposes of section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and otherwise is not subject to liability under these sections.
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SIGNATURES
In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Converted Organics Inc.

By: /S/ EDWARD J. G ILDEA
Name: Edward J. Gildea
Title: President, Chief Executive Officer, Principal
Executive Officer, Chairman of the Board
Date: March 15, 2013
In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.

By: /S/ EDWARD J. GILDEA
Name: Edward J. Gildea
Title: President, Chief Executive Officer, Principal
Executive Officer, Chairman of the Board
Date: March 15, 2013

By: /S/ DAVID R. ALLEN
Name: David R. Allen
Title: Chief Financial Officer,
Principal Financial Officer,
Principal Accounting Officer,
Executive Vice President of Administration
Date: March 15, 2013

By: /S/ EDWARD A. STOLTENBERG
Name: Edward A. Stoltenberg
Title: Director
Date: March 15, 2013
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Converted Organics of California, LLC 10-K
EXHIBIT 21.1
LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES
• Converted Organics of California, LLC: A wholly-owned subsidiary of COIN, which includes the operation of our Gonzales, CA
facility.
• Converted Organics of Woodbridge, LLC: A wholly-owned subsidiary of COIN, which includes the discontinued operation of our
Woodbridge, NJ facility.
• Converted Organics of Mississippi, LLC: A wholly-owned subsidiary of COIN, established for the purpose of adding a poultry
litter-based fertilizer product to the Company’s existing product lines.

Converted Organics of California, LLC 10-K
Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements of Converted Organics Inc. on Form S-8 (Numbers 333151505, 333-168340 and 333-173265) of our report dated March 15, 2013, relating to the consolidated financial statements of Converted
Organics Inc. appearing in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.
We also consent to the reference to us under the heading “Experts” in such Registration Statement.
/s/ Moody, Famiglietti & Andronico, LLP
Tewksbury, Massachusetts
March 15, 2013

Converted Organics of California, LLC 10-K
EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OR RULE 15d-14(a)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
I, Edward J. Gildea, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Form 10-K of Converted Organics Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the consolidated financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2013

/s/ Edward J. Gildea
Edward J. Gildea
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Converted Organics of California, LLC 10-K
EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OR RULE 15d-14(a)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
I, David R. Allen, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Form 10-K of Converted Organics Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the consolidated financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2013

/s/ David R. Allen
David R. Allen
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

Converted Organics of California, LLC 10-K
EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) OR RULE 15d-14(b)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 AND 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the Annual Report of Converted Organics Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Edward J. Gildea, President and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my
knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the
Company.
Date: March 15, 2013

/s/ Edward J. Gildea
Edward J. Gildea
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
This certification is made solely for the purpose of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, and not for any other purpose. A signed original of this written
statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Converted Organics Inc. and will be retained by Converted Organics Inc. and furnished
to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Converted Organics of California, LLC 10-K
EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) OR RULE 15d-14(b)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 AND 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the Annual Report of Converted Organics Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, David R. Allen, Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the
Company.
Date: March 15, 2013

/s/ David R. Allen
David R. Allen
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)
This certification is made solely for the purpose of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, and not for any other purpose. A signed original of this written
statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Converted Organics Inc. and will be retained by Converted Organics Inc. and furnished
to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

